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CHAIR CARROLL: ... (gavel). . . Good afternoon. This Land Use Committee meeting of
July 19, 2006 is now in session. We have with us this morning [sic} Members Johnson, Mateo,
Pontanilla, and Tavares. Excused for this time are Molina, Kane, Anderson, and Mr. Hokama is
excused from this meeting today. . .. And Mr. Kane has joined us.

ITEM NO. 38:

CHANGE IN ZONING AND PROJECT DISTRICT PHASE I APPROVAL FOR
"HONUA'ULAIWAILEA
670"
RESIDENTIAL
DEVELOPMENT
(C.C. No. 01-334)

CHAIR CARROLL: Members, we have only one item on the agenda, Land Use Item 38, Change in
Zoning... Project District Phase I Approval for Wailea 670 Residential Development. This is the
sixth time this Committee is meeting to consider this request in this term. The Committee held a
site inspection in Makena [sic} in the afternoon of January 4 th , during which Members and the
public and this Committee had an opportunity to view the site from two vantage points, also at a
meeting in Kihei in the evening, followed by meetings in the Council Chambers on March 15 th ,
June 21 St, and July 19, 2006. We have three proposed bills: a bill for an ordinance repealing
Chapter 19.90, Maui County Code, and establishing a new Chapter 19.90a, Maui County Code,
pertaining to Kihei-Makena Project District 9, Wailea 670; a bill for an ordinance to amend
Ordinance No. 2171 (1992) relating to Kihei-Makena Project District 9 (Wailea 670) zoning; and
we have a bill for an ordinance to change zoning from Agricultural and Open Space Districts to
Kihei-Makena Project District 9 ... Makena. We are going to start off this morning--Members, we
will not be having another presentation by the applicant at this time. First, I'm going to ask the
Department if they have any comments, and then we are going to ...hear from the Highways
Division, State DOT. After that, we will be hearing from the Parks Department. Does Planning
Department have any comments before we begin?
MR. YOSHIDA: Yes, Mr. Chairman. Clayton Yoshida with the Planning Department. We just wanted
to clarify for the record--from the last meeting, questions were asked whether the applicant could
apply for a part of the Project District or. .. and we would say yes, as stated in Section 9.45.040.A
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of the Code: the developer ofland designated as a project district on an adopted community plan
may initiate a project district development of part or all of the project district by written
application to the Planning Director. So they could apply for part of the project district.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. And let the record show that Ms. Anderson has joined us.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: We have ... Charlene Shibuya. Is she here? And we have the different ... several
people with her. Are there any questions for them, and if they could come down? Are there any
questions for the Department of Transportation? And do, do you have any opening statements or
anything that you'd like to bring forward before we begin?
MR. MORIOKA: Mr. Chair, Members of the Committee, Brennon Morioka. I'm the Deputy Director
for the State Department of Transportation. Your Committee should be in receipt of, of the
current or the most current status as far as the ... the Department's involvement with the project in
tenns the Traffic Impact Analysis Report. We are currently working with the three developers in
the region and they are putting together a cumulative TIAR. And we will be reviewing that
report and going over their assumptions and their determinations and recommendations once that
report is submitted to us for review. And that's as, as much as I can share right now as far as our,
our involvement for this project.
CHAIR CARROLL: And incidentally, Members, after we hear from this Department, we will be having
public testimony. I'm hearing them first because they have to get back to Honolulu. Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you very much. Good afternoon. Thank you for being here.
So .. .is there any kind of a, a timetable or a date when expect this, this cumulative report to be
concluded?
MR. MORIOKA: As far as I know it, some of the data is being collected right now and the report is
being worked on. As far as the specifics on a submittal deadline, I would defer to Honua'ula in,
in, in that they are the ones actually participating in the, the compilation of the report, but we do
anticipate it to be fairly soon. It is, it is something that they had pushing forward fairly quickly
and it's, it's been something that the Department has been working with them on, on.. .I guess
items that we would be of interest in, in discussing with them. So we have been working very
closely with, with the three developers on a, on fairly regular basis.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. You, you indicate that there are certain issues that the
Department was interested in perhaps getting resolved. Can you share with us what those
specific interests are?
MR. MORIOKA: Sure. You know, when, whenever a development comes into, it comes into a place
and Traffic Impact Analysis Reports are, are done and given to the Department for review, there
are many assumptions that need to be made as far as traffic projections, type of vehicles, types of
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use, and oftentimes these assumptions when you utilize various consultants, traffic consultants,
assumptions tend to be different. And when we received the three different TIARs, there were
some differences between many of the assumptions as far as trip generations. And so that is thy
we had asked the three developers to come up with some agreeable cumulative traffic impact
analysis that they are all comfortable because we didn't want to play referee in, in deciding
which assumptions were correct and which weren't. And, and we are leaving it up to the
developers to develop what, what percentage of the participation for, from each developer will
go into designing and constructing a four-lane facility to full standards from Kilohana to Wailea
Ike.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And in that planning process, the State has identified a, a figure based
on what could be possible expenses to meet various improvements to the highway?
MR. MORIOKA: That is being left up to the TIAR to determine--you know, the, the cost of design, the
cost of the upgrade from a two-lane to four-lane facility. And whatever those costs are, those
three developers will be responsible in full.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. So after, at completion of that, that report, it, it goes to you?
MR. MORIOKA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And you'll review, you'll review it and you will determine whether or
not it is acceptable?
MR. MORIOKA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And... okay, no, and that you're looking at getting in, in a couple of
months?
MR. MORIOKA: You know, I, I really don't have a timeline on that.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Mateo.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Pontanilla, followed by Ms. Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The traffic study that's being done .. .it's from Kilohana to
Wailea Ike?
MR. MORIOKA: Correct.
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VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Question. On Mokulele Highway, I, I know the State is doing it in
phases. When do you expect the four lanes to be completed from Puunene Avenue towards
Piilani Highway?
MR. MORIOKA: We went out to bid, and I believe we received the bids--correct?--for the final phase
of Mokulele. And, and I guess Charlene, our Construction Engineer, will address that schedule.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. SHIBUYA: Charlene Shibuya, Construction Engineer. Maybe if I can kind of fill in. Right now
we have, it's divided in five phases. We have two phases complete. And then, there's a third
phase--which is actually the fourth phase 'cause there's a gap--that's in progress now. That, that
section is anticipated to be completed in about November. The middle phase, we're going to
start pretty soon. That's going to be finished in the summer of next year. And then, the last
phase, we just opened bids fairly recently, we're going to award it soon. And that's anticipated to
be completed at the ... somewhere in the end of 2000 ... actually January 2008. That's the
schedule, rough schedule right now.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. One more question. From the intersection of Mokulele
Highway to Kilohana, is there going to be any upgrades in regards to the existing four lanes?
MR. MORIOKA: We do not have any current plans to bring--currently, there is four lanes that is
provide through that corridor; however, we, we do not have plans to bring it up to full standards
at this time. Much of our, our State and Federal funds is currently programmed for a number of
other projects around this island--specifically, in West Maui as well as, like Charlene had said,
with Mokulele and Haleakala Highway widening projects, and in addition to the Paia Bypass EIS
that we're currently working on. And so right now we, we do believe that the, the monies that
are being utilized in Maui County by the State is going towards higher priority projects. When
we get a chance to bring, bring that portion of Piilani up to standards, we will because it would
be a request by Federal Highways to bring it up to standards. However, because there is the
capacity for four lanes that is currently being provided to Piilani, we think that we are in an okay
situation as far as Piilani's facility, and then future widening to Wailea Ike.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Thank you, Brennon, for being here. At one of my past Parks
Committee meetings, Charlene did a presentation and she also shared with us some of the plans
for the intersection that would involve Mokulele and Piilani. And because all the traffic
basically, it's coming from the airport and it either goes, you know, it's gotta go through that
intersection-MR. MORIOKA: Uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --could you just explain how the traffic is going to circulate that's
different? Because I was completely unaware ofthe plans for that particular intersection and that
the whole highway is going to be moved.
MR. MORIOKA: Sure.
MS. SHIBUYA: ... Charlene Shibuya again, Construction Engineer. As, as a follow up, you know, to
that Parks and Economic Development meeting, I'm developing a, a larger map, but actually
what's really helpful that was, there was like a aerial with, you know, some dash lines put it in
the EA. And that kind gives a better overview, you know, which was one of the concerns that,
you know, when I was showing all these pieces of the map was kind of hard to see. You know, in
this format I don't have a map ready to explain, but I, I do have a response being formulated and
essentially it'll have a color code as to the existing alignment, the new alignment, and how it
correlates to what the EA showed, you know, in the exhibits.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And, and that is also a part of the Traffic Impact Analysis
Report that was reviewed for this particular project in terms of the regional circulation? Are you
aware if they included the plans for the entire corridor?
MS. SHIBUYA: Offhand, I kind of recall. .. you know, they, they did some studies at that intersection
'cause I remember when that project was going through an SMA, I, I recall them looking at that
intersection as a possibility for a large roundabout and stuff. So that's all I recall, but I can't
recall if the particular traffic study in that EA, you know, covered a, a regional area, but typically
the traffic study would at least be consistent with the master plans that was available at that time.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and that the only reason I'm asking that is because what
we're trying to do is have the most recent information available to us because if there is what I
consider to be a substantial difference or maybe a little bit different, I guess, traffic circulation in
that area from what may have been originally projected. 'Cause even during construction phase,
I just want to be clear that what we have before us or the plans are what we're actually taking
into consideration when we're developing specific conditions. So, I, I realize you don't have it
in a format that is available to us, but I just want to make sure that what they submitted is
consistent with the actual plans that are going forward for the DOT.
MS. SHIBUYA: Yes. I mean to that, to that question I could say it is consistent 'cause essentially what
happens is the, you know, the main traffic flow that comes from Kahului into the South Maui
area, that's quite heavy, and so the four lanes, Mokulele, which is going to sweep into the four
lanes of Piilani, essentially accommodates, you know, that, that traffic flow. And as far as the
pattern, there is no really change 'cause from the intersection you still will be able to access the,
the local parcels in that area, I mean if I'm getting the question correctly. But as far as the, the
regional traffic this, the project is consistent with the, that.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, my only point is that because right now the way that, you
know, you've got that little island of land in between when you're coming off South Kihei-MS. SHIBUYA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --Road, and then it forks, so you can either go on to Piilani or go
straight over to Mokulele or go back the other way towards Lahaina side. What my question
basically involves is when you look at each one of the points along the corridor, from what you
described, there will only be one point now because the, the other one would be cutoff
completely.
MS. SHIBUYA: Oh, you're talking about where South Kihei Road comes up to the intersection?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.
MS. SHIBUYA: You'll still have a connection, but it's going to be on to the current leg that we call
North Kihei Road, if, if, I think that's what you mean.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right.
MS. SHIBUYA: So and then that, that "in-between" leg is gonna just stay as a utility corridor, but
essentially you ... South Kihei Road will still be connected to that area. And you're correct, you
know, maybe that ... the old stretch of Mokulele Highway is going to be abandoned. But you still
can get to Kahului from South Kihei Road via that, that short leg of the North Kihei Road that,
until you get to the intersection. But it's hard to explain without exhibits-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, without a map. Well, if you could transmit that to Committee
or something so that we could have that available to even look at, even if it's in a rough draft
form, 'cause I think it's important to understand how the traffic will change at that particular
intersection.
MS. SHIBUYA: Yes, then what I'll do is .. .I have the response, I'm formulating the response for the
Parks and Economic Development Committee and I'll copy this Committee the same.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. I would really appreciate that 'cause that it really is important
to know how the traffic circulates along the whole corridor. And with regard to any of the, I
guess, the plans, the timelines you've given us basically, but my understanding is that with
the--well, of course, you're not involved with the North-South Collector Road, are you?
MS. SHIBUYA: You mean the County's project?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, the County's project.
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MS. SHIBUYA: Well, actually...well, I'm not involved personally in the North-South, South Collector
Project, ifthat's what, if that's what you mean .. . (laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, I just wanted to know in terms of funding that's Federal
funding, so you're really not involved with that portion of it.
MS. SHIBUYA: Well, the Department of Transportation is involved to some degree 'cause we do ... all
the County-Federal aid projects do come through DOT.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So you're the pass-through, you know, agency. So if, if you
do know about the funding then, because the whole traffic circulation in that area is so dependent
on having these reliever roads and to try to prevent any kind of overcrowding on anyone road,
Brennon, would you know about the funding for that and where we are on that?
MR. MORIOKA: Yeah. Right now the funding is not being programmed for the North-South Collector.
Part of the, the issues that the Department of Transportation has, as well as Federal Highways is
that the corridor through South Maui requires 12 lanes of total capacity--4 lanes on South Kihei
Road, 4 lanes on Piilani, and 4 lanes on the North-South Collector. If the County would like to
pursue a two-lane North-South Collector, there needs to be a reflection in the regional circulation
plans of where that additional two lanes of capacity is going to go. And until we can identify
that, the Federal Highways will not participate and DOT will not program those monies for that
project.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. What, what if we just had the two lanes with the extra two for
right-of-way that could be developed at a future time?
MR. MORIOKA: That would still be possible. That, that is the current condition of South Kihei Road.
It is currently striped for two, but it has the capacity to go four--and, and that is reflected in the
circulation plan or, or, or in the capacity for the corridor that actually identifies where that
capacity is. And until we can officially approve and adopt a regional circulation plan that
designates where those additional four lanes will go or, or the two lanes that is now being
reconsidered, we cannot move forward with providing Federal funds.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right. But from what, what I understand from what you're saying,
the rights-of-way if that were provided, even though those lanes weren't built at this point in
time-MR. MORIOKA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --it would still qualify?
MR. MORIOKA: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. With regard to the bikeways or... and particularly along
Piilani because with the stopgap measure that was actually completed, it has been reported that
it's very dangerous. I don't see many bicyclists on Piilani, and particularly with the speed that
people are traveling at. So when can we expect some kind of, I guess .. .(laughter) . .. adequate
bike lane that really would allow safe passage?
MR. MORIOKA: You know, and I'm not, I'm not completely sure what the plans are for the widening
of Piilani for this, the portion that we're actually talking about, whether that actually provides a
separated or dedicated bike lane, but there will be adequate shoulder along this stretch. The
portion that we would be still missing a component of... you know, of, of a standard highway
cross-section would be the stretch from Mokulele to Kilohana, you know, which we, we don't
have full standards. And, and I would also have to check to see what. .. as long as the projects,
the bike path projects need to be consistent with Bike Plan Hawaii, and, and I'm not familiar
with Bike, with what Bike Plan Hawaii says specifically for this corridor. So, I mean I don't
know if I could actually give you a correct answer.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. MORIOKA: I'm, I'm not sure.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Alright, thank you very much.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Ms. Tavares, followed by--oh, okay, Mr. Pontanilla,
followed by Ms. Tavares.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Coming back to Federal monies, is there a time frame that you
gotta use it?
MR. MORIOKA: Uh ... yes and no. It's a little bit more complicated answer. When you obligate
funds, Federal funds for a specific project, then you have a timeline to start. We are allocated
approximately $160 million of Federal funds annually and we are required to what's called
"obligating them to a specific project by the end of that Federal fiscal year". If it is obligated to
a specific project that may not necessarily be ready to go and begin expenditure of those funds,
we have until the end of the fiscal year to deobligate those funds from that project and then
reobligate to another project, which is something that we commonly do. Because, I mean,
project schedules come and go, and, and you have unexpected delays on various projects. So
reobligation, deobligation/reobligation is not something that's uncommon to us.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: So once that project looses it's Federal, the Federal dollars, you need to
reapply?
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MR. MORIOKA: Correct. We, we go through what's called the STIP process, Statewide Transportation
Improvement Program. There is a public participation process that we have to follow. You
know, we do not make decisions in a vacuum. We have to make recommendations, put it out for
public comment. We, we talk with the various counties on whether these still their priorities or
do they have new priorities. And then once we receive public comment, then we officially adopt
them and have concurrence by Federal Highways.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for the Department of Transportation? Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I, I thought Ms. Tavares was next.
CHAIR CARROLL: No.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mr. Morioka, thank you so much for
commg.
MR. MORIOKA: No, my pleasure.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: .. .1 don't know where to begin. . . .(laughter) . .. You did say
that the regional circ, circulation plan--I'm just going take care of this, follow up on this
North-South Collector--that the regional circulation plan was for four lanes for Mokule, or rather
North-South Collector, South Kihei, as well as Piilani?
MR. MORIOKA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And ... because we want South Kihei to be two lane and we want
North-North South Collector to be two lane, you're now saying that the circulation plan is not
adequate to absorb the traffic given those reductions to two lanes. So does that mean that in
order to, to absorb the current capacity in that region, that we really have to have four lanes on
those two roads?
MR. MORIOKA: The ... and, and these, these lane-age capacities are based on, you know, 25-year
outlooks, and so the, that capacity that is identified may not necessarily be needed at this time,
which is why South Kihei Road can be, can remain as a two-lane facility rather than four lane,
even though it's identified as a four-lane facility, and, and similar with the North-South
Collector. It...maybe the current need is only two lanes, but somewhere in this plan we need to
identify where the full 12-lane capacity will be provided before we can continue with Federal
funds.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So that 12-lane capacity is what's required by the year 2025?
MR. MORIOKA: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so is there any way.. .in your study you must have some kind
of incremental. .. measurement say by 2010 we're only going to need six lanes or I mean--you
see what I'm getting at?
MR. MORIOKA: You could derive that kind of information out of, out of a circulation study. A
regional circulation plan is, is actually a County document, but we do, we do prefer a, a
regional. .. circulation plan that is basically considered a joint document where both State and
County can agree that these are, that regionals, that region's needs because State and County road
networks need to function in coordination with each other. The, the State is, the DOT is
embarking on our long-range transportation plans for the various neighbor islands, and we will
be initiating the Maui plan very shortly and, and we do believe we will be able to identify much
of those regional, regional needs within our, our Maui County trans .. .land trans ... Land
Transportation Long-Range Plan. And, and that's something that we could provide you at that
point. But the current, the current circulation plan is, is a County document.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so when do you think that plan that you're just talking about,
State plan, might be ready?
MR. MORIOKA: We'll probably have a consultant onboard by the end of the year or the first quarter of
next year. And then we're, we're trying to work on the model to develop the data that will go
into the, the plan ...right now, concurrently. And then we're hoping to complete the plan, maybe,
by the end of next year of 2007. And that will be a, I believe, a 2030 outlook.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. So if understand what you're saying then, that means that
we're, if we're, if we keep South Kihei and North-South Collector Road two-lane roads, that
means we're short four lanes and we've gotta find four lanes somewhere else. And the only
other place would be another road mauka of Piilani or widening Piilani by another four lanes? Is
that correct?
MR. MORIOKA: Those would be options, but the DOT's position is that Piilani, as a four-lane facility,
is at its maximum capacity.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right now?
MR. MORIOKA: Correct. Because we do have right-of-way restrictions as it is, so we cannot expand
Piilani any further beyond four lanes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Ever?
MR. MORIOKA: Not unless we start acquiring a significant amount of private property from many of
the developers that you currently have in front of you.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, that's good to know. So ...what you're telling us is we're
short four lanes for-MR. MORIOKA: Right now you're short two because South Kihei Road is considered a four-lane
facility?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It is?
MR. MORIOKA: Yes.
two-lane facility.

It, it's already built to a four-lane capacity, it's just currently striped as a

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But there's-MR. MORIOKA: Correct?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --there's only two lanes and so you can only have two lanes of
traffic.
MR. MORIOKA: But it can be restriped to a full four lane facility.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Right now without any expansion at all?
MS. SHIBUYA: If I could clarify. Charlene Shibuya, again, Construction Engineer. The, the County
was successful in doing Federal aid projects for South Kihei Road from ...this would be ... not
"Kanani", but which...that street before ...right after Kanani ...Keonekai, Keonekai. Between
Keonekai and Piikea, which is the Longs Drugs area, there were three phases of Federal aid
projects where the County was successful to get funds by actually building the curb-to-curb,
enough for four lanes, but it's only striped for two lanes, a median for left-tum pockets with
some bike lanes and parking on one side. So that's the stretch Brennon is talking about. And the
County was also successful in doing Federal aid four-lane master plan roadway, some, some of
the ... would ... that, that would be the east-west connectors, like Piikea. Part of it. .. you can see
it's wide, the upper portion, with some provisions for widening later on in the future, and then
that Road, we call it Road F, Alanui Kealii, that road or portions of it. .. actually, in fact the entire
portion you can see where it's curb-to-curb, it's actually have, you have opportunities to stripe it
to four lanes, but in the interim it's two lanes, parking, bike lanes, and a median.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So back to South Kihei Road. If the, the width of the roadway
allows for four lanes eventually, it only goes to Piikea, then what's going to happen ...
--(CHANGE OF TAPE, start lB)-MR. MORIOKA: Yeah. It. .. you know, as, as you move, you know, to one extent of a region, the
capacity, the lane-age capacity does diminish because now you have less, less people living
beyond that point, you have less businesses for people to access. So, you know, it, it. .. South
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Kihei Road may start off as a four-lane capacity high, I mean road, but it does start reducing
itselfto a two-lane capacity road at some point. And, and I think-COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: And what point is that?
MS. SHIBUYA: Actually, if, if I could clarify. I think the County at that point, if you look at the old
Kihei Traffic Master Plan, South Kihei Road is actually planned for four lanes further down,
even past Piikea. And the County was actually going from a fourth phase of continuing the
widening and ... apparently it did, did not, it did not get community support. So, but in, it is
master planned eventually, but at this time because of the land uses and, you know, the volume
of. .. well, the densities, you know, it's actually functioning still yet. But at some time in the
future it may need four lanes according to the master plan, unless the master plan is modified to,
you know, explore other alternatives.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Like the North-South Collector Road.
MS. SHIBUYA: Well, according to the master plan, yeah. Like so if, if the County wants to continue to
pursue Federal, Federal aid funds for that road and they insist on leaving it two lanes into the
future, then, yeah, they, they would have to come up with some sort of master plan that could
support, you know, the additional two lanes, you know, somewhere ...whatever, whatever the
alternative is. Of course, the other thing is, you know, the land uses drive everything. So maybe
if you cutback the land uses for the next decade, then maybe then you won't need it .
. . . (laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you for that suggestion. I appreciate that very much,
Ms. Shibuya. You know, Mr. Morioka, I don't know if you've been on South Kihei Road and I
appreciate your generalization as you move into a region things, the densities get less. But that's
not the case for South Kihei Road. As you go south, actually the congestion is even greater, and
the problem with it is that really to widen at that point, you're taking away critical commercial
space that is dedicated for parking right now, which is also at, maxed out in South Maui. And I
would venture to say at least 70 percent of the time when you're on South Kihei Road, south of
Piikea, you're going to be in bumper to bumper traffic. So we have an issue. And, and then of
course we have ... beach parks on the makai side and I don't see where we have any room to give
up space there also, and again parking along that road for beach use. So, I'm just going to leave
that for now and I appreciate your information on that. But you, you just stated which is another
wonderful comment to hear, that Piilani Highway is at its maximum carrying capacity right now.
MR. MORIOKA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Much like-MR. MORIOKA: Well, as, as far as what we plan to construct. I do not know whether the actual traffic
volume is at or overcapacity. I, I don't have that information for you right now, but--
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Could you-MR. MORIOKA: --as far as building Piilani out to a wider facility or, or a higher capacity facility, we
do not have any plans ... (inaudible). ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So when you said "maximum capacity", you meant your plans for
maXlmum-MR. MORIOKA: Our, our physical capacity.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Physical path.
MR. MORIOKA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Could you ...you folks must have a count, a traffic count of what
would be max, maximum carrying capacity for Piilani given the size of the lanes we have and all
that.
MR. MORIOKA: Correct. And that's actually what the three developers are currently doing right now,
I believe, for the TIAR, is they are taking current traffic counts. And then we, then traffic
consultants use that to make projections for, you know, aerial growth versus what our, our
roadways can actually handle for various levels of service.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Right. And so ... since you brought that up--I, I wasn't going to go
there yet--but just to follow up, will this TIA...the ... TIAR that they're currently doing, that will
include all the, the projects that are currently being built right now in that area?
MR. MORIOKA: They need to take a look at the long range, basically 20, 25 years out as to what is
going to be the, the condition of this area, of this corridor and what will be its needs over that
long term ... or by, I should say by the end of that long-term period.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But it's taking into account things that are currently being built
right now also-MR. MORIOKA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --that aren't online yet?
MR. MORIOKA: And projected land use.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right. I really appreciate you re ... requiring that. This is a really
critical area. We're already in a bottleneck situation and to add another 5, 6,000 people south of
Kilohana could be dramatically... negative for the area, unless we have roadway capacity. So

- 14 -

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
July 19,2006

could you possibly get a figure for us on what the carrying capacity is currently of Piilani
Highway-MR. MORIOKA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: --and send it to this Committee?
MR. MORIOKA: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Great. And then ...the widening of Piilani from Kilohana to
Wailea Ike, are you going to require them to widen that at Federal standards so that when the
time comes to upgrade the rest ofPiilani it will match?
MR. MORIOKA: It, it will be full State standards.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Great. And, and that means Federal standards, too?
MR. MORIOKA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Earlier when you were talking about their traffic report
that, that they're doing, that you wanted to make sure that. .. they're working together
in... coming up with one assumption that everyone agrees to. And, and I'm assuming in your
response to Member Mateo that, that means that the assumptions they make, you folks will
determine whether or not they're correct assumptions?
MR. MORIOKA: Or if they're reasonable. Assumptions, I mean assumptions are educated guesses.
So whether we, we're to say they're correct or not-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MR. MORIOKA: --it's still debatable. But are they reasonable? That, that's what we will have a hand
in, in determining. But, you know, but what, what they're doing is simply... trying to figure out
what allocation or percentage of this project will be attributed to each of the three developers.
What the cost is for design, construction? The Department doesn't really care because it's going
to be whatever it is and, and they will have to pay for it at no cost to the State. So what this
TIAR does in, in, in... when, when we get all these various TIARs from various developers, we
try and figure out what is, what is a fair share. And that's, and that's the issue at hand. By
having them do one cumulative one, we're letting them determine what is the fair share for that
amount of or, or that cost that is going to be associated with this widening, you know, and, and
the timing.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You mean the fair share among themselves?

15 -

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
July 19,2006

MR. MORIOKA: Correct. But they will be responsible in totality to pay for that stretch of, that stretch
ofPiilani widening.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Okay. Thank you. Then, one other question, Mr. Chairman. You
know, you folks have a strip of. .. future roadway--well, I guess it's not future anymore--but a
strip of land that was set aside for the extension of Piilani Highway that goes right through this
project. So can you tell us what the State's plans are for that roadway?
MR. MORIOKA: We have no intention of paying for any extension of Piilani beyond Wailea Ike. If
Piilani is to be extended, it will be at the cost of whoever wishes that, that extension to be built.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well-MR. MORIOKA: The State will not-COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: --if the Council wishes that extension to be built, then it would be
up to the developer to build it?
MR. MORIOKA: Or the County, however you so choose. But the State will not participate in the
widen, in the extension ofPiilani Highway.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: And the reasoning behind that?
MR. MORIOKA: It's, it's a regional issue. State highways go region to region. And Wailea Ike is
determined to be a reasonable logical termini of the region. Anything else beyond Wailea Ike
would be determined to be more "local traffic" rather than "regional traffic". And that would be
the reason why our determination that Piilani as a State facility would end at Wailea Ike.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And is that a new decision? Because this strip, you know, has
been on our books forever and I'm sure it's also somewhere on yours. The State purchased the
land or at least had it dedicated to 'em at one point in time. So where-MR. MORIOKA: And that, that's for future considerations is, is, you know, to keep options open. But
as, as long as ... from what I understand .. .is that the State has always taken the position that the
extension beyond Wailea Ike, you know, is, is not going to be a State, State highway facility.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You think that's always been their position or you're not sure?
MR. MORIOKA: As long as I know-COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Yeah.
MR. MORIOKA: --as long as I have been aware.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, because originally the extension of Piilani was to go up
north . .. towards Ulupalakua and to give us an exit route out of South Kihei. And, you know, it's
on all of our long-range plans, even in our community plan right now. And it's on the
petition... for Wailea 670 when they first got their district. ..Project District zoning. And the
detennination at that time was that. .. and I think part of the reason that they got their Project
District designation and the zoning that they already have, which is basically just for the golf
course, but it was because of that extension of Piilani going up to Ulupalakua. And I'm just
making an educated guess that the State changed their plans once they identified a South Maui to
Up country road corridor different from the one that was originally on the books. Would that be a
good guess?
MS. SHllUYA: If, if I could kind of add some history that, you know, I may be aware of that our
Deputy might have not been aware of. But from my recollection, you, you're correct. There was
this highway that was planned from Kihei to Upcountry and back in the early.. .I think it was in
the early '80s, at one time, you know, they were looking at extending this road which was
somewhat running along the old Kihei, Makena.. .I mean, you know, from Makena there was an
old dirt road that used to connect up to Upcountry. And then, of course, with the new EIS--I
shouldn't say that, "new"--but the, the EIS and the corridor studies for the Upcountry-Kihei
Highway, you know, that, that was one of the routes that was, that were looked at. But now the
current one is between Upcountry and Kaonoulu. So, you know, through the years it, the
priorities have changed as far as, you know, whether the State, you know, was going to do that
last, last so-called phase of Piilani. So, I think that's what you're referring that initially there,
there was this so-called, like a third phase of Piilani Highway.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. And the reason I bring it up is because .. .that was the plan
when they got their Project District designation--was that this roadway would, you know, go
through their project and go up towards Up country and that would be another exit. Another?
It'd be the, the only exit route from south, you know, the south, south end of... of Makena,
Wailea. And... as it is now, now we're just settling with one exit route. And, and I just have a
problem that we're going to be putting too many people at the end of a dead-end road that are
gonna have to try to exit out of South Maui should there be any kind of disaster on, on Piilani
Highway and, you know, if we're already at capacity, I don't see how adding more is going to be
safe. I mean I hate to be, you know, a doomsday person and, and look at the worst case scenario,
but we have to do that because we're looking at people's lives. If there was a big brushfire or
any kind of, a natural disaster where people have to evacuate, you know, how are they going to
get out? There's no makai-mauka roads.
MS. SHllUYA: Well, actually right now, currently there is sort of like a grid network which is fonned
by Piilani Highway all the way to Wailea Ike, and then, then you've got-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: What do you mean by a grid net-MS. SHllUYA: Well, well, you know, say for. . .if you look at the whole South Maui area, you have
South Kihei Road which is the makai road; and then you have Piilani which is the mauka road;
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and of course portions for the North-South which is, you know, eventually supposed to go
through, in between Piilani and South Kihei Road; and then you have some east-west connectors.
And even at the end of Piilani Highway, you have Wailea Ike Drive that goes down into the
Wailea area. So if.. .I mean there is some grid network.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, but we don't want people gridlocked on this grid network.
We want to be able to evacuate them from the area. That's my point. And that's what I, what I
thought that this, you know, additional extension of Piilani was going to be, you know, used for
as, as another exit route out of South Maui. And now we only have one until you get the
Up country road done. And even then if you're in this south region of, of South Maui, you're
never going to get to that Up country road because we've already been told by our Civil Defense
guy, if there's any natural disaster in South Maui, you might as well just put on your tennis shoes
and start running for the mountains because there's no way the highway is capable of evacuating
everybody. So, I guess I'll just leave it at that. I mean you guys aren't, I guess, not really
concerned about that. That's not part of your planning process?
MR. MORIOKA: No ... and, and it is. Emergency evacuation is always a consideration in long-term
plans and as well as regional circulation, which is why the regional circulation plan is so critical
in identifying where your total capacity is going to be. And so if, and, and that's why Federal
Highways and, and the State would not participate in, in, in making decisions that do not clearly
identify what your alternatives are. If you, if, if North-South Collector Road is identified as a
four-lane capacity road and you're not going to build it or you have no intentions of building it to
a full four-lane capacity over that long period of time, where is that going to go because that
needs to be a consideration. And if you don't, then, then, you know, there, there are
consequences as far as Federal funds. We have the same parameters that we have to deal with as
well when, when, if we don't make decisions or we don't design to standards that are acceptable
to Federal Highways, we will not enjoy the, the ability to expend Federal funds on our projects
as well. So ...when, when we talk about this regional circulation plan, it's identifying exactly
what you're trying to refer to--and that is ... and, and Charlene mentioned the interconnectivity.
There is, there is alternatives once this network of roads is built. You do have--if, if Piilani for,
for whatever reason is closed, you do have alternatives to get on to South Kihei Road or to
North-South Collector, once North-South Collector is built. Also, you know, part of this whole
plan is the Kihei-Upcountry road which we are currently in design. So there, there is plans to
build these things, we are on a schedule. Much of it is, is determined by cash flow, but, you
know, all, all of those, all of those things do go into consideration when we develop our, our
circulation plans, our long-range plans, and then developing our priorities for which projects
need to move faster than others and, and which ones are going to be receiving Federal funds.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. So in that plan when you're making your determinations,
you, you actually calculate whether or not or how long it would take to evacuate South Maui
using these routes that are, that are or will be available?
MR. MORIOKA: No, 'cause those, those are exceptional. . .instances.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MR. MORIOKA: They need to be considered, but you, you cannot, you cannot design for that kind of
common occur. . .in that kind of occurrence happening on a common basis because you'll simply
go broke because you're going to have such significant requirements as far as road capacity. But
it, it does playa role in making certain decisions as far as how can we, how can we move traffic
in the most efficient way as often as we can or in, in as bad a situation as we have. And, and, you
know, an emergency evacuation would be the ultimate circumstance and we, we simply design
to that standard. We try to plan for it, we, and that's an operational issue. But as far as our road
systems, you take into consideration, but you design for or you design and build for what we can
practically service.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. So back to this strip of State highway.. .let's see, State
land ... that goes through Wailea, Wailea 670 ... are, are you aware, you want my, you want to
look at my map?
MR. MORIOKA: Yes. No, and, and I'm, I'm just trying to query whether it's actually under the
jurisdiction of DOT or if it's still with DLNR.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
MS. SHIBUYA: Yes, let me just to clarify whether it is truly dedicated already, but it's-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, all the maps I have it says "State of Hawaii" up to a certain
point, and then it says "Ulupalakua Ranch". So it's a shared corridor.
MS. SHIBUYA: Well, my map is ... you have a better map, my map is a little bit faded ... (laughter) . ..
If we could take a look at your map?
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Well, my map's a little bit small ... (laughter) . .. I wish I had a big
map. But-MS. SHIBUYA: Oh ... but it, it's the strip, the strip just passed ...
. . . Okay, this is Wailea Ike right now. So they might have ... at one .
. . . Yeah, so look like it, if, this is the part of that, initially, awhile back, back in the '80s, they
were looking at this so-called third phase, yeah, third phase ofPiilani. It looks like it's a... but at
this point it's not being developed at this point because the Kihei-Upcountry Highway-COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Well, yeah, I understand all of that.
MS. SHIBUYA: Yeah, and then you--
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But I'm, the reason I'm bringing this up is because it goes right
through this project. So have you folks discussed with these, with the applicant as to whether or
not they can buy this corridor for you, from you for their use or will you just hold this in
perpetuity, lease it to them or what?
MS. SHIBUYA: Yeah. Act. .. actually I'm not aware. I would have to consult with our right-of-way
branch.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Could you let us know because-MS. SHIBUYA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --and so you will not be participating in any way to the extension
of Piilani beyond Wailea Ike, even though the State has a corridor that extends Piilani from
Wailea Ike?
MR. MORIOKA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, you know, there is ...well, you've been discussing the traffic
impact analysis with these folks. Have they made any comments to you about doing that?
MR. MORIOKA: Yes, and they, they are aware of our intentions not to extend Piilani Highway.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: But, but-MR. MORIOKA: So they, they are very aware of, of our decision that the State will not
participate... but whether Piilani gets extended or not, and that's a whole separate issue.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But would the, would, would the State be willing to tum over that
corridor so that we could use that-MR. MORIOKA: That, that would be a discussion that we would be very willing to have, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I think that's critical because they've already made a commitment
to the Wailea Community Association to extend Piilani Highway through, through to Makena.
And it seems to me that this corridor would be in a, a logical place to put that extension. And
obviously, you're not going to let them build on it.
MR. MORIOKA: If-COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: So if-MR. MORIOKA: Correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --they can't build on it, they might as well use it as a road.
MR. MORIOKA: Correct. And, and if and ... you know, and again, we would be very willing to have
that discussion with the developers.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Great. Thank you very much, Mr. Morioka. Appreciate it. Thank
you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL:
Thank you, Ms. Anderson.
Transportation, State Department?

Further questions for the Department of

... Hearing none, thank you very much for joining us today.
MR. MORIOKA: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, we are now going to have public testimony. Public testimony is now
open. For those testifying, please come to the podium when your name is called, repeat your
name at the microphone so we can make sure to have it for the record. You have three minutes.
At that time you'll be notified you have one minute to conclude. Ms. Nakata?
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, the first testifier is Lance Collins .

. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MR. COLLINS: ... Aloha and good afternoon, Chairman Carroll and Members of the Land Use
Committee. My name is Lance Collins and I'm a resident of Kahului, and I am an attorney in
private practice in Wailuku. I come today to testify on Item, LU-38, three proposed ordinances
before this Committee. I believe that this Committee needs to ... defer this matter until the
General Plan process is completed .
. . . I think that the Council has a moral obligation to support the community's will and the
community's desires. The current General Plan is clearly. . .outdated and in need of being
revised. The process for revising the General Plan has begun. The Maui Island General Plan
Advisory Committee... voted and more than a bare majority of that committee urged you folks
and the Planning Commission and the Mayor not to approve anymore developments that were
not 100 percent affordable housing developments until the process was complete. And they gave
some very good reasons for that. I think ultimately the point of that resolution with the GPAC
and my statements today is that our County is in a crisis with regards to affordable housing. We
are in a brink of catastrophe with affordable housing rentals and homeownership. We aren't in a
crisis of a lack of luxury homes, and I guess, you know, we, we could use another golf course for
local people, we are sort of crunched in that, but we definitely don't need another lUXUry golf
course at the moment. There's no, not in the brink of catastrophe for a shortage of.. .luxury
homes. And because this is not a fully affordable housing project, this Committee should defer
this matter until such time as the General Plan is done. The General Plan, after 2002 is ... and
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Bill 84 is required to have a number of significant pieces of information and planning with
regards to affordable housing and our limited natural resources. I don't believe that this Council
is capable of approving this with all of the knowledge it needs before that process is complete,
and it should be deferred. However, if it's not deferred .. .I think, first of all, if you read through
your binders, one of the proposals is to have the developer create a private water system and drill
wells. If that is going to happen, one of the conditions should be that the private water system be
dedicated to the County upon its completion. I think West Maui is a great example of the failure
of having a patchwork of private water systems so that the County really has no idea of how
much water we have in West Maui and can only guess-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. COLLINS: --that water systems that are held privately in West Maui are beginning to fall apart,
and the County has no idea which ones are in urgent need of repair and which ones aren't
because they're privately held. Finally, I would also ask this Committee to very carefully if it is
going to go ahead and go through its approval of this, look through the Land Use Commission's
conditions because I do not believe that the current proposal fulfills all of those requirements.
And it would do a great injustice to our planning process if the bare minimum conditions of the
LUC, as proposed, are not. .. supported by this Council. Thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Collins. Any questions for the testifier?
... Seeing none, thank you.
MR. COLLINS: Thank you.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Bob Babson, to be followed by Lucienne deNaie.
MR. BABSON: ... Aloha, Council Members. Thank you for allowing me to testify. My name
is Bob Babson. Affordable housing for Maui citizens is a big problem, and I'd like to make the
following suggestion which I believe would help solve the problem. For all subdivisions, simply
make mandatory the following construction of units--units could either be condominiums or
single family detached homes under this formula: 25 percent of all units must be under 1,000
square feet; 25 percent of all units must be 2,000 square feet or less; 25 percent of all units must
be 3,000 square feet or less; and the final 25 percent of all units can be any size the developer
would like. Or a variation of this could be that the average unit in a subdivision must be 2,000
square feet or less. This would give the developer flexibility and be more popular with architects
and subdivision designers. If this formula were applied to all subdivisions up for approval in the
future, it would significantly increase the number of smaller homes available--and hence, smaller
homes are cheaper than big homes. More citizens would be able to afford these homes. It's
simply supply and demand. If the supply of smaller affordable homes increases, then more
citizens could buy them. These would be free market. The housing bubble has now popped and
prices are falling, so speculators will not be buying in the future like they have in the past. Even
if a speculator investor does buy, they will rent them out and this, too, would provide housing for
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cItizens. The above is completely legal within the zoning powers of the County because it
clearly is reasonable and for the better good of the community. It should be mandatory for all
subdivisions larger than five units. This zoning power would also solve the great unfairness of
Maui citizens not being able to live in the nicest communities with the best views of the ocean,
et cetera. Why should only millionaires be able to enjoy the fantastic ocean views from Wailea
670? The above formula of construction would solve this problem by providing a large number
of smaller/affordable homes for citizens to either buy or rent and enjoy the views and the fast
commute to all the good jobs at the hotels in Wailea. As a second idea, I would like to suggest
that on larger subdivisions, such as over 100 units, that you require the developer to spread the
work over the years. This will ensure jobs for Maui citizens for years to come instead of creating
an influx of construction people flying in from all over the United States--like happened during
the great hotel boom in Wailea beginning in 1987 and ending in 1991. It would be a very simple
requirement. The developer would simply be limited to building 100 homes per year. This
should not be a problem with Wailea 670 since they have already stated the build-out will be
over 20 years. Since they are building 1,400 units, they would have a 14-year build-out. You
should simply make it a written requirement instead of relying on a verbal promise. I hope you
will consider making both of these ideas mandatory conditions on Wailea 670 and all-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. BABSON: --all other subdivisions in Maui that come up for your approval in the future. Mahalo.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? --(CHANGE OF TAPE, start 2A)-... seeing none, thank you. Ms. Nakata?
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Lucienne deNaie, to be followed by Joan Martin.
MS. deNAIE: Aloha, Chair Carroll and Members of the Committee. Thank you for hearing this
matter today. Although...I am... Lucienne deNaie, I'm testifying today on behalf of Maui
Tomorrow. We've been before you a few times to address some of the implications of this
particular projects. One of the things, I think, that this Council is really being moved forward, it
is the carrot of affordable housing being offered. And it's a good thing this carrot is being
offered. It wasn't. .. this project has been through a lot. This carrot wasn't offered very often.
There's really a, a confusion among the public whether there, there's going to be really a final,
final decision to have affordable housing in this project. Public statements have been made to
the effect like, well, ifthe public wants the affordable housing someplace else, we'll just build it
someplace else. However, I think that we must ask is this primarily a private golf course, the
first in, in Maui, with it's surrounding community, with whatever gates and so forth that that's
going to attend? And if so and if so many units are built a year, how many of them will be
affordable? If 200 units are built in a year, that means that we have 6 affordable units that come
online? So is this the, the big solution that we're looking for? Also, if will we actually see any
of these affordable units approved--since it appears to me from the ordinance as its now written
that it's an administrative decision. This Council will never have say on it again. It will be
decided somewhere in Public Works. And some of you may recall that the Land Use
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Commission asked a similar condition be put on Makena Resort. And a few years later, this was
like in 1994, a few years later... David Blane, who was the Director of Planning, went before the
Land Use Commission and asked to have that condition removed, Maui didn't need anymore
affordable housing, it was languishing, please take that out. And the Land Use Commission did
consider doing that, but didn't choose to act on it. So administrations come and go, and the good
work that you think you may be pledging today, I think, needs to be encased in concrete if you
want it to continue as good work in your name. We already know that there's limited road
capacity, no public water, no public wastewater capacity, and no emergency exit for this
development. So the question is what's the big rush? Some of you were at a, a little get-together
the other night with members of the community organized by Stan Franco. We heard the pathos
of the community that they would like to see less in the way of fancy subdivisions and more in
the way of places that just people could live, and those should come first. And I don't really see,
in this ordinance, how that's going to be delivered. Maybe you in your wisdom do, but I really
urge you to consider this as it is. It's a series of strung together former approvals based on
commitments and conditions that really do not exist now from the extension of Piilani Highway
on down. And I'm sure most of you are familiar with the history-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. deNAIE: --and how this project was originally half its size, and it was doubled in the
1980s ... amending the community plan because it made logical sense, Piilani Highway was
going to be extended and this was a good place to put housing. Well, that's not the case. We
don't really know what's going to happen in this area, except that it seems a lot of rich people
want to live there. As a person who read the past plans and saw that that was going to be our, our
solution--that we would kind of confine tourism to certain areas, I'm here to say that that's a
myth and it's failed. Tourism is spreading everywhere. I think we would carefully plan the areas
that we have left that are desirable for as many local residents as possible, and I think that that
was your original of putting this in the community plan. It'd be much like Maui Meadows,
which is a place that has many, many modest houses along with some very-MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MS. deNAIE: --incredible beautiful fancy houses. Thank you for your consideration.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. . .. (cleared throat). .. Excuse me. Just one
quick question. I, I appreciate your testimony, Ms. deNaie, the fact that the original intention for
this Project District was for a residential community that--and I'm going to read this right out of
the community plan: it should provide a mix of single-family and multi-family housing types for
a range of consumer groups. Do you see a range of consumer groups in this project?
MS. deNAIE: I'm not expert on it, but I have attended the public brief... briefings--you should probably
address that to Mr. Jencks. But it appears to be ... upscale housing for those who want a private
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golf course; and as a bone to the public and to get public support, some affordable housing that I
think mostly will be apartments or condominium style. I don't know how many actual singlefamily homes, but it's a limited range. It may be a range, but it's a very, very limited range. It's
not, it's not another Maui Meadows. It's, it's a fancy golf course community in my... the, the
first on Maui. We don't have any private golf course communities here. So people are waiting
in line to buy places here. I, I hear them talking. So, you know, that's just the word on the street.
They can't wait to have a golf course that only they can go to.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Any further questions for the testifier? Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Ms. deNaie, good afternoon. Thank you, thank
you for being here. Your, your reference to the carrot of affordable housing being laid before us
to move this project forward, I'm sure, I'm sure you had the opportunity of taking a look at the
summary of the affordables that is going to be provided or being recommended for our
consideration as part of the, part of the project. You have seen the project's list of affordable
contributions?
MS. deNAIE: Yes, I have.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Four hundred and twenty affordable units is not, is not appropriate?
MS. deNAIE: Well, why wouldn't the whole community be a range of things that are not really-COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Well, because, Ms. deNaie, the whole project is based on providing a
multi, a variation of units available from affordables to sky's the limit, I guess.
MS. deNAIE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: But, you know, 420 units--Iet me just kind like, you know, let you
know--420 units to be provided, it's going to be provided on a concurrent basis, one for one.
MS. deNAIE: Db-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: They're also taking a look at including limitations for ownership
where, where you're going to have to declare or prove your residency. There is a tenure to live
in the home from ten years on down. There is commitments for working, what we've already
talked about, which, which is a special-needs or group. So these are all part of what you're
terming "carrot"?
MS. deNAIE: Let me just say that many things have been promised on this site already that have now
been changed. I, I hope and pray that if you make this decision to move forward, that this is
exactly what we see delivered. I guess just over the years you get a little cynical because so
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many--where's the worker's houses in Wailea that everyone thought was such a great idea? They
don't exist, Mr. Mateo, and I wish they did and I'm sure you do, too.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
comments.

Uh-huh, uh-huh.

Thank you, thank you for sharing your, your

MS. deNAIE: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Ms. Nakata?
MS. NAKATA: The next and last testifier who has signed up is Joan Martin.
MS. MARTIN: ... Good afternoon. Thank you for the opportunity to testify this afternoon. My
name is Joan Martin, and I'm testifying on behalf of the Maui Nui Housing Task Force, as I
previously had done at a meeting on January 4,2006 of the Council's Land Use Committee. As I
stated in my testimony then, the Maui Nui Housing Task Force supports Wailea 670 project for
the following reasons. We want to see houses built for Maui's working families. We agree with
the concept of building one affordable unit at the same time as one market priced unit is being
built. And third, we support the allocation of affordable housing at 50 percent for those earning
less than 100 percent of the median HUD household income, and we agree with the allocation of
50 percent of the affordable housing being allocated for those earning from 101 percent to 140
percent of the HUD median income. We do, however, have concerns that we hope will be
addressed by the Committee. First, the affordable housing proposal by the project will not
remain affordable in perpetuity. In Maui, we have repeatedly seen how affordable housing is
eliminated over time without many, any mechanism in place to maintain affordability. With the
creation of Na, Na Hale 0 Maui, a community land trust, we now have a mechanism in which
affordability in perpetuity can be achieved as this project moves forward over the next few years.
Second, we are very concerned about the potential that affordable housing requirements could be
met with the donation of land to the County for another entity or for something that's yet
unspecified. We believe that by working with the developer, the inclusion of affordable
workforce housing within the boundaries of the proposed project is an achievable objective if
approached in a creative manner. Affordable- and market-priced homes should be similar
through design and landscaping, and need not be placed by side-by-side, but can be located in
various sections of the overall project. One example might be that the affordable rentals could be
located nearby the community commercial district area. The builder's representative has
informed us at this time that inclusionary approach is his overall intention. To assist in
strengthening this commitment throughout the proposed 20-year build-out when players and
condition of ownership may change, this body may wish to include a requirement that affordable
housing for Maui residents be built and included in project boundaries along with market-priced
housing for off-island buyers as a condition of approval. As you are well are and which has been
demonstrated by the positive actions you have recently taken, we are in a housing crisis. Our
lower-income and middle-income families are in crisis. We need affordable housing, including
rentals, now. As I testified in January, I want to emphasize--
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MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. MARTIN: --that you please ensure that the affordable work house residential housing is actually
built as a result ofthe promises made by this project. Again, thank you for allowing me to testify
in support of this worthwhile project with the conditions I have stated.
CHAIR CARROLL:
Ms. Nakata?

Thank you.

Any questions for the testifier?

Hearing none, thank you.

MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, no one else has signed up to testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Is there anyone in the gallery that wishes to give testimony at this time? Please
come forward .
. . . Seeing none, no objection, we will close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: Public testimony is now closed .
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..

CHAIR CARROLL: Members, it is almost a quarter to 3. We'll take our mid-afternoon break now, and
right after that we will hear from Parks, but. .. which we left off at the last meeting. However..
.is there anyone that wishes--I have the Police Department and the Fire Department on call. Is
there anyone that wishes to ... question or has questions for them? Please let me know when we
reconvene so I can have them over here after we hear from Parks. We are now in recess until 3
o'clock. .. . (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

2:47 p.m.

RECONVENE:

3:05 p.m.

CHAIR CARROLL: ... (gavel). .. Land Use Committee of July 19, 2006 is now back in session.
Members, is there any request to have either the Police or the Fire Department be here this
afternoon?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I have a request for the Police Department.
CHAIR CARROLL: For the Police Department? Only the Police Department? Thank you. We will
notify them and they should be able to be here after Parks .
. . . Ms. Johnson?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I, I. .. did they gave a presentation last time? Because I know that at
one point I had to leave at the meeting and I don't know if this question was asked with regard to
a lot of the brush fires and a lot of the problems that we've been having with brush fires traveling
there rapidly.
CHAIR CARROLL: If you, if you wish to have them here to ask them questions, you let me know now
and we'll have them here.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, okay, but that's basically the only question that I have.
CHAIR CARROLL: Okay. We will request both the Police and the Fire Department to join us.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, we'd now like to hear from ... at the last meeting, we left off Parks
Department. We had just started with them, and so we will begin at that point now. Mr. Matsui,
do you have any opening remarks?
MR. MATSUI: Mr. Chairman, the last time we left off in this general ballpark, the developer was going
to give .. .instead of building a Little League ball field, they were going to give cash for the cost
of construction and also the value of the land. And right now, it's, we're looking at 3~ to
5 million dollars for that. On top of that, they're required to do park assessment. And the
Department has determined that would request cash. And right now based on their unit count
and the present. .. park assessment, we're looking at in the excess of$16 million. On top of that,
they are providing over 100-plus acres of small-pocket parks, open space, and that type of thing.
So as far as ...the park requirements, the Department is more than satisfied with that.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the Department? Mr. Kane?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Just to be clear. The 16 million includes the first part of the money we
talked, the 312 to 5 million dollars for the, for the baseball field?
MR. MATSUI: No, that's over and above.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: In addition?
MR. MATSUI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. So it's

3~

to 5 million, and then another 16 million plus--

MR. MATSUI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: --for the park assessment cash in lieu?
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MR. MATSUI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Pontanilla?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. I think at the last meeting I, I had indicated if there
was a possibility as far as building the parks, have, having the developer building the parks.
Well, I want to ask the Parks Department to work with the developer in building that park,
including the gym.
CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's it. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: ... Mr. Chair, could Parks respond?
CHAIR CARROLL: Parks?
MR. MATSUI: The ordinance does allow us to do that, especially if they're required to come up with
money up front. We could take that cash or have them build a portion of the park, and tum it over
to the park, to the County.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. I, I think...by doing that, Parks working with the developer, we
can be ensured that we can have some ball fields or the park being built at the ... the proposed
regional park or district park next to Kihei School.
CHAIR CARROLL: ... Afterwards, I think maybe we need to talk to the applicant.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
CHAIR CARROLL: Perhaps you ... that would be the line of question that you should pursue. For right
now, though, I'd like to ... have Mr. Matsui answer all the questions possible on the floor.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Mateo?
... Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Pat. .. you're giving a range 3Yz to 5 million--and you could
explain why... that's, I mean, $112 million is quite a big difference between those two figures.

- 29-

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
July 19, 2006

MR. MATSUI: Well, you know, we're looking at ... at the market right now for land. That's escalating
pretty quickly. Also, construction costs are escalating pretty quickly. So, you know, at the time
of the tum over that would be, you know, we would have to do a... a market value for the land
and also ... estimate the cost of construction at that time. So, you know, for me to, at this point in
time, I'm just kind of giving kind of ballpark estimates on what it might be.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And... this would be a condition or is not a condition?
MR. MATSUI: Their original approval as a condition of zoning, they were required to build a Little
League ball field and tum it over to the County. And for the Department, we agreed with the
developer that we felt it would be more appropriate to put the Little League, Little League ball
field at the district park that we're planning right now. So what we're looking at--taking the
value of the land for the Little League field and the cost of construction for the Little League
field and taking that money and building the field at the district park.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. But I guess what I'm ... you know, because there was no
original condition... that was attached to this, do you have the authority . .. (laughter) . .. to
modify the condition? Was it left up to the Parks Department? Or if that's a condition
... (laughter) . .. I guess what I'm saying is, you know, if that's a condition, either it is or it isn't.
MR. MATSUI: Well, the condition would have to be modified by the County Council. . .and I'm
hoping... you would see to our wishes-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: .. . {laughter} . ..
MR. MATSUI: --of what we feel .. . (laughter) . .. would be most appropriate.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
Well, I, I think, you know, in... along the lines of
Councilmember Pontanilla, though, I think that if that's what they were required to do and that's
what they're willing to do and the cost is that amount of money, I mean... what's the difference?
I think, frankly, wouldn't they be able to build that at a regional park if you specified, if we
changed the condition to say that they construct this at the regional park and do what you would
do? Because you're going to get caught up in going through RFPs, government projects.
Ordinarily, what they'll do is they'll run up. 'Cause I know that in Lahaina what we did was we
had the developer do it. Of course, there were a few problems on the expansion for the Lahaina
facility. But if that's something that. .. would you support or do you feel that that's something
that's workable if they would ... do the building on the site that you're stipUlating and you put in
the conditions, basically, that you want to see implemented?
MR. MATSUI: Urn ... that could work.
... So, you know, we're at the point where we have some preliminary plans. We're going to
start our EA process. And so, you know, we could work with the developer on them building the
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field. But, you know, what we need to negotiate is the value of the land and also, you know,
what is, what is the cost of construction.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And the site where this would be is?
MR. MATSUI: At the district park or ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And that's the ...not the 150 acre?
MR. MATSUI: No, that's the 40 acres.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: On, on the makai side?
MR. MATSUI: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And that's why you have to go through SMA.
MR. MATSUI: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for Mr. Matsui? Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: .. . (cough) ... Excuse me. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. You know,
I'm reading the minutes from the ...
. . . I don't really know what it is, it's the PED Committee, whatever that was in 1992.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Parks [sic] and Economic Development.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Parks [sic) and Economic Development Committee which heard
this project back in 1992 and gave them the current zoning that they have right now in the project
district, and I know somebody asked earlier and I'm sorry I, I didn't get the whole
question... something about whether a project district can be segmented or cut in half. .. and the
answer was "no" .
. . . I, you know, they actually did segment this project. Back in 1992, they only zoned it for the
golf course and the clubhouse. And that was the first phase it was zoned. And they actually
went through the whole project district process down to Phase III. So .. .I don't why we can't do
it now if we wanted to. But the point I'm getting to, Mr. Chairman, in regards to parks is that. .
.these minutes clearly indicate and the conditions that they imposed also indicate that this
project's original intention, the purpose and intent for this project district was a residential
community for the residents of Maui, not for second and third homebuyers. That's why there
was a requirement. .. the requirement still stands for a public golf course, that actually is a
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condition that they have kamaaina rates that are 50 percent of what commercial rates are, and the
requirement for a Little League park in the project. And if that doesn't indicate the intention that
this was supposed to be a residential project for a range of economic ...
· .. say exactly... "a range of consumer groups within the County", then I see this has morphed
into something entirely different from what the project district. .. designation and description in
the community plan says and from, what, the previous zoning they received on this project
district indicates. So, you know, I appreciate the Parks Department saying they would rather
have a ball field somewhere else. But, you know, the elected body who made this decision back
in 1992 felt that we needed a ball park at that end of South Maui, and that's why they
conditioned it. So ... and they were very strong about having two golf courses. If they want one
golf course for ...
· . . I guess for market rate. . .fees. . .fine. Actually, the way it was set up is it was two golf
courses and they were going to interchange the holes. And, and at any given time, half of
the ... course would be dedicated for local play and the other half would be for tourist play. And
now what we've got is a private golf course, one. And that changes the whole intent behind the
original designation for this project district. And so I have a problem with that. And, you know,
maybe the other Members think it's okay because we're getting affordable housing, but, you
know.. .I hate to think that we have to have luxury housing to offset every time we want to get
housing that our resident community can afford. There's no balance there and ...
· .. as one of the testifiers said, we don't need another, another luxury golf course, certainly not a
private one ... when we need more playing time for local residents. So my question to ... the
Parks Department is ...would you have any problem having the condition stand as it is and have
a Little League ballpark built in this project district?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Matsui?
MR. MATSUI: We stand by our recommendation that we take the cash and build the park at our district
park and not within the project district.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: 'Cause that contradicts what the condition is. The condition was
for them to build the park or rather the golf course, I mean the Little League field
· .. (laughter) . .. and that the Little League field actually would include ...
· .. the recommendation--and this was to Mr. Nakamura back in those days--that the developers
complete the park, build, build the field, at that time they were going to do a 6-acre park, also, in
this project district. .. that they complete the park, they build the field, they put in backstops, they
put in the bleachers, and so that when the golf course is ready to go, the playing field is also
ready. That was a condition placed on this project district which still stands today. And I'm not
so comfortable, you know, here we are ... how many years ... 15 years down the road and we're
changing the whole intent behind how they got this project district. And you know, I, for one,
have respect for those who sat in this position before me, and for the wisdom they had and, and
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setting down certain conditions and... and language that they put together to designate this as a
project district, and I'm very uncomfortable changing the whole intent and purpose behind this
project district because it's now more profitable to build high-end luxury homes. And while I
respect the Parks Department, I think they need to respect the elected body who set that
condition in place, and I, myself, am very hesitant to just accept that, that change. So along with
the fact that we're not getting a public golf course out of this .. .it. .. you know, we, we're
changing the whole intention here. We're building a luxury project that is going to be around a
private golf course. And it was clear that the intention of this body, when they first entitled this
project, was a completely different animal than what we're dealing with today.
CHAIR CARROLL: Alright, Members, my intention, of course, is to try to finish with Parks over here.
Mr. Pontanilla has a question concerning Parks that can be best asked [sic} by the applicant. As
soon as we've exhausted any questions for Mr. Matsui, I intend to ask the applicant to come
down, and then. . .some of these questions, while we have Mr. Matsui here, I believe can be
answered by him. Is there any questions now, though, for Mr. Matsui? Hearing none, if there's
no object-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Just one more question, please.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Mr. Matsui, the park assessment fee, that
would be paid in increments. In other words, as each house or each dwelling unit is built. ..
--(CHANGE OF TAPE, start 2B)-- ... for that dwelling unit. Is that correct?
MR. MATSUI: The park assessment is paid upon subdivision approval. So they'll probably be building
in batches, you know, like let's say the first phase is 100 units, they would pay us for that 100
units.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So whatever the subdi ... however many lots the subdivision
includes that's what they pay at the time the, subdivision's approved?
MR. MATSUI: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Anything further before I call the applicant down? Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And the formula you're using, is that final subdivision approval or
preliminary subdivision approval?
MR. MATSUI: It's final subdivision. A lot of times they bond it, so final subdivision approval.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for Parks Department?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chair, one more.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Pontanilla?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: In regards to the $5 million, that will be paid upon Phase I approval?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Matsui?
MR. MATSUI: Well, we're proposing that they pay it upfront-VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. MATSUI: --of. .. for the first subdivision approval.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Fine. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for Mr. Matsui? Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, Mr. Chairman, all these con, things that are being discussed, I
hope, will be turning into conditions, and it's up to us to make the decisions about when and
where and how we want different things to occur with this project. So it's, it's really, at this
point, up to us. And hopefully we will get a list of all the conditions prior, present, suggested
changes. There is one already... No. 11 to change the, the ball field requirement. So it's, it's
listed as a condition. So we'll have an opportunity to decide, make a decision on that. Thank
you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Tavares. And I would ask all the Members as we're proceeding in
this line of questioning with Parks, when you come across something that you wish, when we
ever get, if we get to conditions of zoning, that you would work on now any conditions that you
would like to bring forward. Even though we're not going to actually do conditions right now,
'cause we don't have a motion on the floor, now is the time for you to start thinking about it as
we are going through these proceedings. Are there any questions right now for Parks
Department? If not, Mr. Pontanilla had a question. Would the applicant please come forward?
I'm going to ask Members to keep their questions restrained to Parks. We can always call him
back for other things, but I want to finish with Parks.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Fine.
CHAIR CARROLL: And, Mr. Pontanilla... you had a question earlier that indicated that the applicant
might be able to best answer?
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VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ... {inaudible} . ..
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. In, in regards to the last meeting that we had, understanding that
the developer is willing to work with the County in trying to develop that particular park, the
district park at. .. well, next to Kihei School. .. My question to the Parks Department, not
"question", but "comment", was that if they could work with you in creating this park?
MR. JENCKS: That's correct.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MR. JENCKS: We can go-CHAIR CARROLL: Please identify yourself at the microphone.
MR. JENCKS: Oh, I'm sorry, Mr. Chair. The name is Charlie Jencks, Owner's representative, Wailea
670. Yes ...Mr. Pontanilla, the, we have offered and we would work with the Parks Department.
We could go as fast or faster than they could in helping them get the funding in place. With
regard to the park fees, 100 units ... today, based upon the current park fees in South Maui,
which are 11,800, is a million dollars for 100 units, whether that be affordable product or market
rate product. So you can see that you're gonna generate park fees in a hurry as you get into the
project building 100 units. In addition to the, what we volunteer as, as being a cash upfront
payment with regard to the ...relocation of the Little League facility that the Little League folks
in Kihei would like to have built, that will go a long towards getting that regional park out of the
ground.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the applicant concerning Parks? Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Mr. Jencks, good afternoon.
MR. JENCKS: Good afternoon.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: The reference to the additional 100 acres that would be made available
for, for smaller parks, could you give us a little more information on that 100 acres?
MR. JENCKS: Within the project? Yes, we have .. .in addition to the, to the golf course, which is 200
acres, the total acreage is 670 acres. 200 of, of that is, is one 18-hole golf course. We have
approximately, somewhere between 90 and 100 acres, I think it's actually 90 acres, it's, it's open
space and park area. And that is a combination of, of the open space drainage corridors, it'll
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have trail systems in 'em, as well as I think we had ... a total of 6Y2 acres of, of park area planned
in the project as well.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further question? Ms. Johnson, followed by Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Charlie, a statement that you made about the, I guess,
drainageways and, you know, open space. Because we're not considered... and because we
cannot basically have drainageways as parks, how much would be the acreage if you took out
for the drainageways of that 100 acres that would actually be considered parks?
MR. JENCKS: I, I just. . .I think maybe I wasn't clear--6Y2 acres would be, would be active park area
within the project district. ..
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. JENCKS: ... the balance is open space with trail systems, including the drainageways. That, you
know, we have wide corridors planned to accommodate the drainageway and the trail systems.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
component of is it--

Yeah.

But I'm asking specifically about the drainageway as a

MR. JENCKS: ... (inaudible) . .. So you want to know the drainageway number?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, I would like to know that because basically you have to take
that component out of the equation because we don't consider that as park space.
MR. JENCKS: Well, and I'm not considering it as park space, I'm just offering as open space. I'm not
getting credit for it. I'm not asking for credit for it, rather. So, I'm not-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. So, so basically what you're saying is that. .. there is open
space, but it's not necessarily other than the 6Yz acres or whatever, it's just what it is, the trail
ways and-MR. JENCKS: That's a correct characterization.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Alright, thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Charlie, this 6Yz acres ...how is that broken
up?
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MR. JENCKS: We have planned within the northern area of the project two small park areas that will
be used for active play, for example, small soccer fields and then ... broken up evenly in two
areas, and, you know, that's a flexible number. As far as we're concerned when, when we
presented the plan to the Parks Department, they made it clear that they would like the
fees--which I understand and I, and I accept, because of the need to develop a regional park
facility in South Maui. But we felt it still important to provide, even though we're going to pay
the fees, we have to have park facilities in the project for people who live there ... because the
regional park is down the road, frankly. So ... and, and I've also made it clear that within the
neighborhoods in the project, some of the builder parcels are, let's say, 5 to 10 acres. It's our
expectation that when people build on the project, they would also build recreational facilities in
those projects which you see commonly. So there would be not only the parks that we would
want to build and provide for the public to use in the project, but also those that are provided by
individual builders in the project, plus the golf course, plus the park fees that we'd want to pay to
the Parks Departments, plus the money for the Little League facility to get that going.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But your, your plans are to have the golf course as a private club?
Is that correct?
MR. JENCKS: It's a private, it's a homeowner golf course, it's for the people who live in the project.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So then the public isn't, isn't welcome to use it?
MR. JENCKS: And that's not a true statement. The, the fact is ... and, and if you took a look at the
State Land Use Commission revised conditions, we established ...what you find typically in the
State of Hawaii, the State Land Use Commission provides a requirement. ..pro forma on golf
project. They've done this, historically, to provide public play, but no one has ever defined what
that is. And my position is I'd rather know exactly what I'm going to offer going in so it's clear
to everybody so there's no second-guessing. Our public play program, which was accepted by
the State Land Use Commission, which, which we'd like you to accept as well, is that we're
offering play, instruction, and equipment to Maui Junior Golf in the golf course, as well as
nonprofit quarterly play and intramural play.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well .. .I did read the Land Use Commission Decision and Order
and ... you got them to drop the condition for a, a public course in lieu of these ...
. . . these conditions on the, on the private course-MR. JENCKS: We got them to-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --Junior Golf and-MR. JENCKS: We got--
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --I mean you offered that up as, as an exchange for dropping the,
the public course.
MR. JENCKS: We, we offered, we offered to define the "public play" requirement that way. And they
accepted that. They had a public play requirement. We defined what the public play would be.
And they accepted that. And they exchanged the conditions out.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: And, and in lieu of that, they dropped the condition for the second
golf course for public play.
MR. JENCKS: In the State Land Use Commission approval. . .I don't recall a condition requiring a
second golf course for public play. There's a "public play" condition, but not, not a condition for
a second golf course.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: On the ...well, 1 have right in front of me here the 1994 Decision
and Order... for Wailea 670, which .. .
. . . states, under Findings of Fact. .. that the petitioner, excuse me ...
MR. JENCKS: Are you looking at the conditions?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No, I, 1 just said I'm reading the Findings of Fact. And the
Findings of Fact are ...presented by the petitioner, which at that time was Palauea Bay Partners.
MR. JENCKS: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: And they stated to the Commission that the petitioner has obtained
approvals from the County for two IS-hole golf courses, related facilities, and a 6-acre public
park, construction of which began in 1993 .
. . . Can you clarify that?
MR. JENCKS: Yes, I, I'd be happy to. Actually, what 1 did when 1 first became involved with the
project, Council Member, is 1 went back to the .. .I gave the State Land Use Commission a, a
revised description of the project and told them so there were no surprises or changes that they-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But it's-MR. JENCKS: --would not expect-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Jencks, just go back. 1 didn't catch that. You gave the ...
MR. JENCKS: 1 went back to the State Land Use Commission and--
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COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: When you asked for an amendment to the petition?
MR. JENCKS: Actually, when I first became involved in the project back in 2001-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
MR. JENCKS: --because I wanted to make sure they understood clearly where we were going with the
project and how it had evolved in terms not only of, of the, we had taken out any hotel
accommodations, we had taken out other things as well and reduced the density significantly.
So, I wanted to make them sure, I, I wanted them to understand clearly that we had modified the
project from what the applicant had represented initially--not from what the conditions say in the
D&O, but what, from what the applicant had originally represented. And I gave them a complete
summary, and they accepted that. So they understand clearly that the project today, that we're
talking about today in this Committee is exactly what we're presenting. . . so there's no
misunderstanding with the State Land Use Commission.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Well, that was my question. My question was, and I guess I didn't
ask a question, I asked for clarification. In 1994, it was represented to the State Land Use
Commission that construction had already began in 1993 of the public golf course. Well, I don't
know if they meant the public golf course--I'm just going to read it again. Petitioner has
obtained approvals from the County for two 18-hole, hole golf courses, related facilities, and a
6-acre public park, construction of which began in '93. So are you telling me now that
construction never began?
MR. JENCKS: The, the applicant received a Phase II approval, as you stated earlier in the meeting, as
well as a Phase III approval for the two 18-hole golf courses. And, and I, also, I think included
in that was a Little League facility as well. But they never, and they actually... they applied for
grading permits and pulled the grading permits, but never started work. And I cannot explain
why-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Why-MR. JENCKS: .. .(inaudible) . ..
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: --they said it began? Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Chair, point of clarification.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Mr. Kane?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah. Member Anderson has been referencing a public golf course in
her remarks, and then she just read the decision from 1994. And I didn't hear anything about a
public golf course. I heard two 18-hole golf courses, related facilities, and a public park of
6 acres. So can I ask Member... Anderson if she can cite so that we're clear that they're, at some
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point? Because I think her question was ... and her point that she was trying to make is that there
was a requirement for a public golf course. And based on what I heard her read into the record,
there is no mention of a public golf course. There's a mention of two 18-hole golf courses.
CHAIR CARROLL: I heard the same thing. Yes-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So if I can get clarification from Member Anderson on what, where she's
referencing a public golf course being dropped out?
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Ms. Anderson, can you clarify that at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Sure. The condition for the public golf course was in the
Council's Project District Zoning for this project which happened in '92. What I just read from
in '94 was the petition, the petition to the State Land Use Commission for... amending from
Agricultural to Urban. And so what I just read was the petitioner's representation to the State
Land Use Commission. And they said, I mean they didn't, it's not that detailed. They just said
the petitioner has obtained approvals for, from the County for two 18-hole golf courses, related
facilities, a 6-acre public park. So they're relating to the State Land Use Commission what they
got approvals from the County in 1992, and I'll read the condition so everyone's clear as what
the County... Council at that time ...just for old time sakes--Howard Kihune, Patrick Kawano,
Vince Bagoyo, Goro Hokama, Alice Lee, Rick Medina, Wayne Nishiki, Joe Tanaka, and Leinaala
Drummond. The condition says: that the ... declarant make available to Hawaii residents
50 percent of the tee times on one of the two golf courses and charge such Hawaii residents
green fees, including golf cart rental fees, in an amount not to exceed 50 percent of the green fee
rates, including golf cart rental rates, charged to non-Hawaii residents.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Golf courses.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Well, I mean if, if it's open to .. . (laughter). .. to Hawaii residents .
. .I would say it's pUblic ... (laughter) . ..
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Kane, did you have anything further?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: ... From what I heard, it seems like 50 percent of one of the golf
courses is to be provided with rates, fees ... et cetera. And again, because the reference, the
repeated reference is to a public golf course ...what I just heard read on the record does not
accurately reflect comments. And I, and I'm just trying to make it clear that we're stating facts
and not. .. putting it in such a way to, whether it's intentional or unintentional, mislead anything.
That's all I'm trying to say. That we dropped the public golf course? And from what I'm
hearing Mr. Jencks state, is that they went, to be clear... as far as defining the public use, and he
stated that earlier, Junior Golf, the quarterly use for nonprofits, et cetera. Which if needs to be
restated, and again, it comes back to what Member Tavares, is in the end it's going to be us
- 40-

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
July 19,2006

decides what or what not. And so I'm not questioning what Member Anderson's position is, I'm
just, I'm just asking to be clear on what's being represented. That's all. And so I want to be
clear on what the facts are versus what's being said and if.. .if they're consistent. And right now,
I don't see it quite as ... consistent I was .. . (laughter) . .. as I would hope it would be. Thank
you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: --Mr. Kane. And when ... as I have said before, if we do get to the point to where
we have conditions of zoning, then we can address this in more detail and ...by the Council
putting the conditions that they feel is appropriate.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Do you have anything further, Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes, I'd like to respond to Mr. Kane. I'm readings facts out of
public documents. I'm not. .. trying to twist anything, and it says-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I didn't say twist.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... (inaudible) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, you're saying that I'm not representing the facts.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Chair-CHAIR CARROLL: Excuse me, excuse me-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: --point of order, Mr. Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: --I do not want a conversation on the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: If you will address the Chair? Yes, Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Again, it says two public golf courses.
And any of you who have taken the time to read the, the history of this project you'll see that the
intention, and they represented that to the Committee, was to build two golf courses and to
actually rotate the 18 holes so that at any given time the public, at 50 percent kamaaina rate,
would be playing on 18 holes and, I guess, tourists and whoever's going to play market rate
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would be playing on the other golf course and then they would rotate the holes. And that was the
intention. And I would say that both of the golf courses ...were public. There was no mention
of any private golf course. And, in fact, I'll read the intent of this project. This is from the
Ordinance, Members, 1992: the intent of this project district is to allow development of two golf
courses, a community park, and related accessory uses on land designated Agriculture by the
State Land Use Commission, and designed in a manner which may allow future urbanization of
adjacent and abutting lands for mixed use development, including commercial and public uses,
and single- and multi-family housing types for a range of consumer groups. So-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --for the record, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Do we have any more questions pertaining to parks for either Mr. Matsui or the
applicant? Because we do have the Police and Fire Department here now. Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just had one question to Charlie, and this is in regard to what the
goals and objectives in the Kihei Community Plan state. One of their goals is to establish youth
centers throughout the region. And, you know, it goes on to say that they wanted one near
Lokelani Intermediate School. My question to you is that within your project, because you've
got Village Mixed Use now... that you're asking for, would you... consider putting any kind of a
site or making a site available within the project for a youth center?
MR. JENCKS: The Village Mixed Use District allows for public facilities, so, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions concerning parks for either Mr. Matsui or the applicant?
Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Jencks, would, would you and your property owners consider
a 6Y2 acre park, keeping a 612 park in this, in this project?
MR. JENCKS: Certainly.
. . . The, the requirement for the Little League facility, just to be clear, came from the Little
League Association in South Maui as a part of their testimony on the project back in '93 when it
was zoned, I guess.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: '92.
MR. JENCKS: '92. And in discussions with those folks, we came up with the idea of getting the park
to where it's more centrally located, which would be in the 45 acre proposed regional park in
Central Kihei. So, I think from a planning point of view, we would saw, and I think Parks
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agrees, that's a better spot for it. But if the Council decides no ... we think you should build that
thing right there and that's where it should be located for whatever reason, then we'll have to do
that. We're just trying to oblige and maybe put it in a better location.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... You know, I appreciate where you saying that this came from,
but actually the minutes from the meeting reflect the fact that Councilmember Medina brought
this forward ...the, the issue of the Little League park. So you would be willing to put a 612 acre
park within your project? After all, if you're going to have affordable housing, we're going to
have Maui residents there after all, one way or another, and ...
MR. JENCKS: Well-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... maybe they would like to have a Little League field down
there in that park.
MR. JENCKS: We've, we've also, I, I might add, we've committed, as a part of the affordable
component within the project, to build park facilities to address those needs within the project as
well. So, you know, from my perspective, I think we're doubling up a bit. But like I say, if the
Council feel it's, it's, it's an essential part of this project to require that, the owner to build the 61'2
acre Little League facility, then that's what we'll do. We're just suggesting you look at that
within a more global context--and that being South Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I think that the original Council who entitled this project
originally was looking globally ... (laughter) . .. and looking at the need for this, the, that end of
the South Maui region. And .. .(sigh). .. you did mention for the affordable projects that you
were going to put in park space for them.
MR. JENCKS: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: What size would that be?
MR. JENCKS: Well, right now the Code requires 500 square feet per unit. So out of 100 units, you get
one acre's worth of land, approximately. So we would certainly build the park space per the
Code--and probably, frankly, not get credit for it because like I say, and Parks has said they want
the cash.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so on one acre could you do a Little League field?
MR. JENCKS: No.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You couldn't do much on one acre, could you?
MR. JENCKS: You can... well, it just depends on what kind of area you're dealing with, what kind of
topography you have. It just depends on a lot of factors.
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COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: ... (sigh) . .. Okay. Thank you.
MR. JENCKS: You're welcome.
CHAIR CARROLL:
applicant?

Thank you.

Any further questions on parks from either Mr. Matsui or the

. _. If not, thank you.
MR. JENCKS: You're welcome.
CHAIR CARROLL: We now have the Fire and Police Department. If the Police Department could
come down first, please?
... Please identify yourself at the microphone.
MR. RAMOS: ... My name is Victor Ramos, the Acting Captain for Kihei District. And this Officer
Bradley Hickle, our Community Police Officer for Kihei.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Anderson, I believe you're the one that requested for the Police.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. I'm sorry, I didn't get a chance to switch venues here and
find your letter. So if you could just tell us on the record what your recommendations are
regarding this project? I'd appreciate that.
MR. HICKLE: I actually don't have my last written record in front of me right now. Over the years, we
made a lot of recommendations. And I know that the developers, over the years, have made a lot
of proposed changes for the project, including roadway improvements and... taken into account
our CPTEDI evaluations and so on.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Your what evaluations?
MR. HICKLE: The Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design Ideas.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So as the project is, is configured right now, you don't see any
problem for the Police Department as far as traffic circulation or anything in that nature?
MR. HICKLE: Oh, certainly. There's, there's always with a project of this size or any new
development coming into the South Maui area, there's going to be traffic concerns. The
developer, though, I think over the years have, went from a 2,500 .. _proposed unit project to
about 1,400, I believe. And they went from, I believe, one golf course or two golf courses to one
golf course which also is going to help alleviate traffic concerns in that area. And also, they've
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proposed roadway improvements from the current. .. two lane, one north and one southbound
portion ofPiilani Highway to two southbound and two northbound.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... It says, in the report from the Planning Department, that. .. the
project would result in unacceptable conditions at the intersection of Kaukahi Street with Wailea
Alanui Drive in the afternoon peak hour with long delays, level of service "F" forecast for
vehicles turning left from the mauka bound approach of Kaukahi Street. Installation of traffic
signal control at this intersection would provide acceptable conditions with the present lanes .
. . . Do you believe--I mean this is your district, so you know this--do you believe that. .. without
a traffic signal that. . .I mean, level of service is low as, "F" is as low as you can get. So ... do
you think it would be ... acceptable to, to build this project out without a traffic signal at that
intersection?
MR. HICKLE: I think so at this point because of...Kaukahi actually sits south of this project or more
southwest of this project as opposed to the location of the project being closer to Piilani
Highway.
That's where, probably, more of the traffic concerns are focused at.
Eventually... there will probably have to be a light at the Kaukahi intersection, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right. Well, that's-MR. HICKLE: But there's-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --that's what I'm trying to get to-MR. HICKLE: --a lot of other developments going into the area that should also or will also contribute
to the traffic problem there.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So ... because I think Mr. Jencks ... spoke to me in the recess about
the extension ofPiilani--that he would like to use that extension and that he would like to have a
second exit from his project at Kaukahi. So-MR. HICKLE: Yeah. Going west, I believe, right? Uh, southwest actually-COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: ... Yeah.
MR. HICKLE: --towards Kea Lani, the Kea Lani Resort.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah.
MR. HICKLE: Yes, that would be a ...
. . . point where they, the project could empty out if they're going south. But also the .. .I don't
have a map directly in front of me. Do you remember what the name of the street is?
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Maybe the Planning Department could supply you with a map. Note:

Pause.

MR. HICKLE: --(CHANGE OF TAPE, start 3A)-- Yeah, the name of the street would be Kalaiwaa.
'Cause the street she's talking about is right here .
. . . Okay. The street, the street I was referring to that's probably going to handle a little bit of
the, the traffic problem would be the Kalaiwaa Street area .. .instead of going directly down
Kaukahi ...maybe to the Wailea Alanui, they would go down to the Kalaiwaa area. I don't think
that there would be a light needed at the KalaiwaalKaukahi Street. I don't think that there's
going to be that much of a volume of traffic going to that area. Most of it's going to going out to
Piilani side.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, that's not what their traffic impact study says.
MR. HICKLE: Hmm.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Does Mr.... excuse me, Captain Ramos have any... comments?
MR. RAMOS: I agree with Officer Hickle as far as, yeah, I don't think it's necessary to put in a traffic
light at Wailea Alanui, not immediately, and Kaukahi.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... But it eventually?
MR. RAMOS: Eventually, yes.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Once it's built out?
MR. RAMOS: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That's good to know 'cause we need to make that a condition.
Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Any further questions for the Police Department?
... Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: .. .(laughter) . .. Thanks very much. I, I know you have been
working for a long while for a location for your facilities, police, a new police station. Is there a
site that you've selected in that area or would you consider anything within this project district?
MR. RAMOS: I don't have all the information to answer that question for you right now.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Because I know that there is Village Mixed Use that they're
proposing, and I would just be, you know, interested in knowing where .. .in relationship to all
of, you know, the services that you have to provide to that whole entire community, where we
might be looking at and what some of the difficulties might be in servicing, you know, that whole
area with, you know, huge development then on that end.
MR. RAMOS: To my knowledge, we haven't selected any particular site yet.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And what would your projected time line be for selecting such
a site and looking at the area of service that that site would be able to adequately cover?
MR. RAMOS: ... I don't know how to answer to that question.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: ... (laughter) . ..
MR. RAMOS: I don't know.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Alright. Thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for our Police Department? Mr. Kane?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Following up on Member Johnson's question. Having some level of a
sub ... or office space like we have in Wailuku town, as an example, would service of benefit for
this, for the Department if an area in the project was provided?
MR. RAMOS: Definitely it would. Access to the community in that site, in that region, part of Makena
and Wailea, it would definitely be a benefit for response time and having the officer remain on
beat on do his reports. So in that sense, yes, it'd be a very big benefit.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you for your comments. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Kane. Any further questions for our Police Department?
... Seeing none, thank you very much.
MR. RAMOS: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: If our Fire Department could please come down to the front and identify yourself
at the microphone?
MR. BAL: ... Mr. Chair, Members, Deputy Fire Chief Neal Bal.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Johnson?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, thank you very much, Neal, for being here. Because every year
we've got our huge brush fires over in the Kihei area, and earlier we were discussing with the
Department of Transportation some of the difficulties, I guess, in actually looking at evacuation
or the public when you have these fires occurring... getting out of harms way... because I know
we've got our station over there now, do you feel that you're going to be able to adequately
address, with the current station and the equipment that you have and the personnel that you
have, the additional. . .I guess, the additional requirements that such a subdivision or such a
project district, as this, would pose?
MR. BAL: I'd like to first comment on the ... on having two ways out of a, a subdivision. It's like
we've done with Maui Meadows for so many years before we finally got a second way out and,
you know, it was ... a blind man's bluff there. Anything could've happened along the way. It
didn't happen, great. I guess, you know, it's like "not in my backyard" or "it won't happen this
time". I don't know, but I would strongly advise that we do have two ways out of that
subdivision. Fourteen hundred homes, we're talking about a huge concern there. We, we have
recently.. .I wouldn't say we've done away with the five-mile requirement that the ISO, the
insurance rating bureau deals with on, on coverage. But what we have dealt with lately is
density. You go to Oahu, and every other comer you have a fire station there. Obviously, why?
And yes, we are, we're concerned when you put in 1,400 homes all of a sudden. It is going to
impact our district. And the amount of people? We're actually ten years behind with Wailea.
When it came on, we were just catching up. We had one little station doing 1,200 calls a year.
1,200 calls--that's a lot in anybody's book. It's, it's broken apart now, but it's slowly climbing
up again with the amount of people ... thinking about, just thinking about 40,000 anyone day of,
of visitors on this island is, is a huge concern. The ...the major... cruise lines on both sides of
our islands will, will impact us considerably. And yes, we are concerned with the density. And
we'd like to think that a little bit more down there just in medical calls is huge.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and part of the planning, of course, and the General Plan
process is going through, evaluating, asking all these questions and trying to make
determinations of what we can accommodate in terms of growth and in terms of public safety
and also the safety of the public when it comes to both rescue, because I know you make your
calls, you know, for a lot of different things, not just always fire. So in your opinion, do you feel
that there's a certain period of time that we're going to need to just. .. as you said, we're like ten
years behind, do you believe that there's a period of time where you would see realistically we
would be closer to what we have as existing, I guess, personnel and existing services that kept
pace with what we've already got on the books?
MR. BAL: I would say before you reach 50 percent of the project, we would have to look at. .. of
somehow upgrading what we have now because it is going to be a huge impact on, on our
services. It also is going to ... you know, I like to .. .it's my Fire Prevention Bureau and Plans
Review people that actually have looked at the plans, studied them and seen what, what has
happened. But just in my 20 years in that Department, there are things that I'd like to address, of
course water is a high priority; the roads, the width of my roads. There's been many that. . .I've
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commented on where, you know, they got away with a minimum size and it ends up now we
can't even get a fire truck in there in the middle ofthe night. ..
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. BAL: ... and it, it concerns a lot of the communities--Lahaina, Kihei ...Paia. There's, there's a lot
of scary projects out there, and as such we've turned, we've turned toward also have mini-trucks
agains, again just to ... you know, we'll, we'll continue to speak on the, the width of the roads in
subdivisions, but we'll also try to make provisions to deal with what we, what we have to deal
with now.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And also, I guess, enforcement of the parking requirements, too,
because I know many of those roads originally were a width that might be able to adequately
accommodate, and now people are parked on both sides of the roads.
MR. BAL: That, that's correct. Our, our Code allowed or did, did allow us to ram if we had to and then
we'd send 'em a bill, you know, we'd have 'em arrested and do everything else. I'd like to think
that holds water, but I don't think so anymore.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and plus, you know, with the new truck or a mini-truck, you
don't want to damage your equipment either.
MR. BAL: Not at all.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: One of the .. .I guess with regard to looking at timeline when you're
saying 50 percent of the project. .. you would have to look at prior to anything else moving
forward. Are you saying then that in the first 50 percent, like 700 of these homes you would
have adequate personnel, adequate equipment and, you know, you'd be totally able to serve an
additional 700 homes?
MR. BAL: I, I'd like to, I'd like to ... you know-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: ... (laughter) . ..
MR. BAL: --to take that back a little bit further and I'd like to also do an assessment on, on the plans,
how soon they plan to come up, where. A lot of these, these units get built without even have,
having accessible roads and, and that's what changes our point of view. There's been houses that
have been built. .. says oh, yeah, we have the water in; the hydrants aren't working, we have no
roads for you to go on in the construction. And so these are the kind of. .. questions that I would
like to have answered before I go there.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and I know that these are generally questions that are
reserved for subdivision, you know, which would come forward at another time, but I want to
have an understanding that once--because we have all these land use approvals out there
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... (laughter) . .. and also, you know, at least the project district is quite large. So, I just wanted
to make sure that, you know, where we're headed and what our timelines are.

MR. BAL: It's just an arbitrary number for right now because I, I would need to see what's going to
come down-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. BAL: --and how quickly.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And I'm sure when they come forward for their actual, you know,
applications, if this does move forward, you'd have the opportunity. But I just want to have a
sense of where we stand with Kihei, Mr. Chair. Thank you. Thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Kane?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair. How big is your current space for... speaking of Fire
Prevention Bureau right down here at the Wailuku Station? Can you give me an approximate?
MR. BAL: '" I would say about. .. hmm... about 700 square feet.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Do you see a potential to have an expansion of the Fire Prevention Office
in this area... as being a benefit?
MR. BAL: '" Definitely. We, we will be ... taking steps to ... get different offices for right now.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: The other question I have is we talk about mini-vehicles--again,
following up on Member Johnson's questions. Does Kihei look to have similar equipment that,
say, Molokai has to deal with off-road accessibility to ... for fire response? Does Kihei look to
have a use for that type of equipment to better serve the public safety?
MR. BAL: What we, what we have done in the past is look at our funds and, and the equipment that
would best serve the areas. We're talking about standalone like Hana, Lanai. Molokai, if you
look at it, is standalone. Lahaina is a standalone until we get people there. It's important that we
strategically place this ... specific type of equipment in these areas now and get them covered
because it's important that they have the special equipment until we are able to send people to
back them up. A lot oftimes we'll be, we'll be dealing with like the brush fires this past summer.
That was quite an experience. My, my resources were stretched to the very, very breaking point.
It was ...my, my guys were going around the clock without stopping. So with this, with, with
these new equipment that you guys have provided us, of course, and, and the funds, this, this
is ... got our head above water now.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: The reason I asked that question so I ... and I'll restate, maybe I, I wasn't
clear. This project's site has some topographical challenges maybe, if you will. And it will be
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completely surrounded by what we see of... mauka of the road of Kihei and knowing
the ...knowing the conditions in there, so that's why I'm asking. Is, if we're going to be
developing mauka of the road, which this project is on the mauka side and it's sizeable, is there
going to be a need to expand our need for equipment that can serve these areas effectively? And
so that's why the question of off-road vehicle access to ... respond to brush fires, as an example.
Is that something that you see down the road as we start to look at mauka of Piilani
development?
MR. BAL: Thank you, Councilman. I already, I already have that concern and with, with that site, you
know, with, with.. .time really is, is the problem. There was a replacement request for, for
instance, our tanker which was going to be a six-wheel drive all terrain type vehicle-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Right.
MR. BAL: --and it was a specialty item that was going to be placed in... Wailea for a very good reason.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Uh-huh.
MR. BAL: The problem is with the Iraq war, none of the two manufacturers that produced this are
allowed to sell outside, this is all for the military. And that's why it's taken so long for us to
finally say, okay, we can't wait anymore and we are ...replacing this tanker for Wailea, by next
month it'll be here. But, yes, there is a, there is a call for specialty equipment. It's not what we
would like to have in Wailea, but we definitely need something special there.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, we're going to call a five-minute recess and we're going to try to keep
it to five minutes. Recess for five minutes. . .. (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

4:13 p.m.

RECONVENE:

4:24 p.m.

CHAIR CARROLL: .. .(gavel) . .. This Land Use Committee meeting of July 19, 2006 is now back in
session. Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Question for ChiefBal. Good afternoon,
Chief. In terms of response time where the project is located in proximity to where the Wailea
Fire Station is, are you able to give us a general response time ... from the station in the event
that, if this project is approved and for whatever reason the fire occurs on or near the project?
MR. BAL: At 3:30 p.m. or a.m.?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Well, both ... .(laughter). .. I guess.
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MR. BAL: I, I would decline, I would decline to answer that now. I. . .I wouldn't. . .I, I cannot begin to
think of, of... of the impact that that community is going to have just dealing with traffic alone.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh. And looking ahead in terms of staffing for the Wailea Fire
Station, has it already been discussed, with or without this project, you know, getting
expanded ... expanded positions for that fire station as well?
MR. BAL: Our... our Fire Prevention Bureau has, has been working with our long-range planning. We
also, the Chief and I, worked with the 2020. We have our, every two years we have our strategic
plan updated and that's due this year, and we will be going into and discussing that, that impact
also.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And would that strategic plan possibly include another fire station for
South Maui in the future?
MR. BAL: I, I believe it will because, mainly because of the density. As I said earlier, we have, we
have been considering the density, the density of these projects up here in Wailuku Heights.
That's, that's all going to be full. On down the road, it's going to be full. It, it's going to impact
us and, and we've already made proposals for the ... a new central station, and so we'll see how
that works out.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Chief. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
. . . Chief Bal, thanks for coming.
MR. BAL: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You were speaking to Ms. Johnson and you said that 14 ... 1,400
houses would severely impact your services and that by half the build-out, you would need
upgrades. Could you be specific as to what the upgrades would have to be?
MR. BAL: I would, I would expect to have some land in that project and also possibly a station. And if
not in the project, then I would expect that to ... 1 would like to think I'd have more room in, in
the Wailea. Wailea will kind of hinder our... our expansion if I did it there because entering onto
the, the roadways, entering into that, that little highway or whatever you want to call it up above,
I think, I think will have major problems as far as providing service just out of Wailea alone.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So it, it's not logical that you would extend the Wailea Station
anyway? You would rather have a station down ... a new station further south?
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MR. BAL: Yes, I would.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And how much land and, and how many personnel to, to ...man
the station?
MR. BAL: What. ..just in the last few years we have ...we have thought that it's very logical to get at
least 5 acres of land from here on out and most of our projects will be at least that size or in that
neighborhood because we plan to build for 50 years. Wailuku Fire Station is over, just a little
over 50 years old right now and it's kind oflived it's useful life. But we'd like to think that if we
he have enough light, land like--Kahului Station is 2 acres, it's landlocked right now because of
that bypass highway that's going in. We can't build-out, we're just. .. we're locked in, so we're
not gonna move. From here on out we'd like to think that we can get at least 3 to 5 acres and
be ...we design the buildings to build-out as we need it. So we can expand, it'll save us a lot of
cost in, in design and money. We would build-out plugs which will allow us to take the planned
building and move out and expand either way with the, the bays, the trucks, the building itself.
And we'd like to think that we'll deal with mUlti-purpose because as we ... grow--for instance, in
Kaunakakai it has become a multi-purpose public building. There's a lot of places--Mitchell
Pauole, that's your only meeting place. We've proposed a, a large room in the, in the fire station
in Kaunakakai to have seating for 50 people. And there's constantly.. .it's surprisingly enough
on, on Molokai, there's constant meetings going on. You cannot get that, that, that meeting place
anytime you want it. Along with that, I've approached Chief Phillips and asked him what he
thought of having a backup dispatch center. He says, I'd endorse that 100 percent. I says, I
know because you're the only one that's going to be sitting in 6 to 8 inches of water when it rains
again and we'll be sitting in our nice, new building.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... (laughter) . ..
MR. BAL: But, but he approved ... that. Also, he .. .it's, it's planned to be an EOC, not to take the place
of Civil Defense downstairs here, but if there is a disaster there, they're able to fly in on the
helipad and go into ... a.. .the EOC in that same room. Also, we plan to harden that station and
to be part of the inventory of. .. disaster shelter.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And you're talking about the future station?
MR. BAL: That's correct. This is the one that we're going to build on Kaunakakai this year.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Oh, Kaunakakai you're talking about?
MR. BAL: Yes, but I was just giving you an example that from now on these are the types of stations
we're going to build. If it's a one-man or... a single company... station, you know, 10,15 years
down the road to say, you know what, we need to add another company to this, okay, fine we, we
have the, the land, we have the room, it's designed to build-out into two more bays or one more
bay, whatever we're going to need. Also, same thing with the, the design of the barracks areas.
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COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: So that's the need for 5 acres?
MR. BAL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and so would you anticipate that eventually there would be
a .. .I don't know what you called it, but like a civil defense station down in the Wailea area?
MR. BAL: The ...we'd, we'd like to ...we'd like to consider that because all the stations that we build
from now on has this latest design by this particular... architects that is really impressive. But
with our strategic plan and our long-range planning, we will, you know, look at that and place
these buildings in the proper areas.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so when this station is needed, how many personnel will you
need to man the station?
MR. BAL: ... I would, I would think that we will start out with a single company. It may be a
company and a half. Basically, how the layouts going to end up being with the brush fires, we
have to address that. We may end up with a company and a tanker. And any more .. .if you're
going to build a station, you better put a tanker in there because you're going to need it.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, I'm sorry, I don't know how many men are in a company.
MR. BAL: Oh, each company has five, five men.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... Okay. Thank you very much.
MR. BAL: You're welcome.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, some of the information, things we've been talking about seem a little
contrary to things we heard before with the State Land Use. If there's no objection, I'd like to
call on the applicant to comment. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: Would the applicant please come down, if you would like to make some comment
at this time? And after that we will hear from Ms. Johnson. That. .. would you like to make any
comment on the discussion so far concerning the fire station?
MR. JENCKS: Mr. Chair, only that we took the time to meet with both the Police Department and the
Fire Department and met with Mr. Bal and the Chief in their offices and discussed exactly what
he's been discussing. And that is, within VMX District as growth in South Maui extends in a
southernly direction not only in Wailea, but also in 670, I think it would be advantageous to offer
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a site in the VMX District for the Fire, Fire Department and the Police Department. And they
both though that was, those were good ideas at the time.
CHAIR CARROLL: And there was no-MR. JENCKS: So, what I'm hearing is the same thing we discussed.
CHAIR CARROLL: And there were no conversations with State Land Use concerning the fire station?
MR. JENCKS: There was actually... there was a... a requirement from the State Land Use Commission
for the provision for a fire station site. And that site was set aside as a, as a condition of approval
from the State Land Use Commission. And subsequent to that condition, the County purchased
land in Wailea, the County built the existing station in Wailea. So we went back to the SLUC
and asked them to delete that condition and they did because the new station was built in Wailea.
And we got the concurrence of the Fire Department and the County to support that, that deletion
at the time.
CHAIR CARROLL: That, that's what I was referring to.
MR. JENCKS: That's correct.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. And I don't have a question of you, Charlie, it's just for
Mr. Bal.
MR. JENCKS: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr. Chairman, of Charlie.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh.
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, I'm sorry.
. . . Ms. Johnson, would you mind waiting while-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR CARROLL: --we have a question for Mr. Jencks?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, that's fine.
CHAIR CARROLL: That. .. Mr. Mateo?
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chainnan, thank you very much. My apologies. Mr. Jencks, again,
good afternoon. Did I just hear you a few minutes ago said that, say that. . .it would, in your
mixed use area, that you would support a fire station in that area?
MR. JENCKS: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And ...what, what was .. .I don't remember the exact word you say,
was it you "support it" or you would "donate it"?
MR. JENCKS: We would provide the land to the County. If the County wants land for a fire station
and/or a police substation, that would be part of the deal.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Jencks.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Mateo. Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I will ask a question of Charlie. Inasmuch as you're willing to
donate the land, one of the conditions state that the development shall not burden government
agencies in providing infrastructure. So would you be willing to construct the station?
.. .(laughter) . ..
MR. JENCKS: Well, I think, you know, there's a big issue here. We've talked about timing. We've
talked about the amount of development and, and the density which is, you know, fairly low
density and, and a gross basis. You know, I've been asked to do other things as well in letters
from the Chair. I think the, the prudent thing to do is to list these things and look at them within
the context of all the conditions. That's the prudent way to look at it.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So is that a "yes"?
MR. JENCKS: I'd be willing to consider it within the context of all the conditions.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Good try.
CHAIR CARROLL: Anything further ... --(CHANGE OF TAPE, start 3B)-- ...Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. I did have a couple of questions for Neal. Because, you know,
all the conversations are going now these days about disaster preparedness and stonn shelters
and, you know, all the, I guess, the 9/11 .. .I guess debacle that has really, really focused on
emergency preparedness and also disaster preparedness as well, what is your Department looking
at in tenns of, let's say, the next ten years out? 'Cause this project would take a, awhile to build
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out. Are you looking for the provision of any kind of other facilities other than the ones, you
know, the obvious, the fire station and maybe a... civil defense center, any kind of a, a larger
center that might serve the greater region of Kihei in, in terms of your Department's, I guess, role
in that area?
MR. BAL: Well, we .. .in the, in the long term, in the strategic plan we've, we've looked at the, the
Kihei Station and it is .. .it's not in a, in an appropriate area. It needs to be relocated. And,
number one, it's in an inundation zone. I don't appreciate-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: ... (laughter) . ..
MR. BAL: --that and I'm sure my people would love to be up the road a little bit higher, and so that's,
that's one. And we need to, we need to talk with my Prevention Bureau who have worked with
the ... the long-term planning people in the 2020, and we have ...placed or have requested
several areas that we might consider. And right now I, I'd like to think that Molokai had a, had a
problem with inventory on disaster shelters, hardened shelters or, you know, whatever you want
to call it, and so we're just trying to do our, our part where we can afford to and add something to
that inventory. I'll have to confer with, with my people when we look at the Kihei area.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, 'cause I'm, I'm ... and, and just I think it was two days ago in
Java they had another tsunami and because there's so much coastal development and .. .I mean
Kihei basically is a coastline town, I guess that elevation that you're looking at in this particular
area would take you out of that zone. Is that correct?
MR. BAL: That's correct, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And that's why I'm asking because I think that that area may
be someplace that you would want to look at. So if there is something that you would want to
also, as Mr. Jencks has indicated, for public purposes, if you could take a look at this particular
area within this project district that's being proposed.
MR. BAL: We will. The, the ... the long term, the long term is what we need to look at and where we
would place our Kihei Station because it's .. .it, it gets very expensive as we go along, so does
equipment, and it, it increases every quarter--as we found out when we're trying to buy new
equipment. And so we'd like to deal with that strategic plan also with the, the long-term
planning and, and pick a... a good site that will take care of the density, it will take care of those
other questions also.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I appreciate that. With regard to .. .in the whole Kihei area, it's just
very dry. Do you recommend within that area when--whether it's a project district or any
structures that go into the future, the building materials that they're actually made of, roofing
particularly--are there recommendations that you have that, you know, we could put in an
indication at least in this area of what might be something that would be considered in a fire
resistant, fire retardant, flame retardant?
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MR. BAL: Very good point. California, of course, in many areas, a lot of the southwest that have these
raging fires going on the time ... have even taken the steps of outlawing this, that type of wooden
shingle house. And, you know, even the ...the tin roof is .. .(laughter) . .. safer than this thing
because I've seen... sparks get into these wooden shingles and sit there and fester ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. BAL: ... and take hours even sometimes to, to finally catch fire, but it's, it's quite an experience
where if you're exposed to these large brush fires, you know, any type of wooden shingle is, is
going to be very susceptible to catching fire. And like the, the fire we had with Ah Fook's, here's
the, here's the Kahului Library and you know how far away that is--that's a good example. And
we've had, luckily, we had an incoming engine that was able to respond to it. In fact, they put a
little water out and then threw one of the guys out with the fire extinguisher and the ladder to,
to ...that was his job, you sit there and make sure this thing doesn't bum down on us, we got
enough buildings burning. So ...that's one of the things we have to contend with when you deal
with wood shingles. A lot of improvements today are, are out there addressing the roof, you
know, even the, the... addressing sprinkling systems. You get breaks in several ways on, on
building your homes or building the multi-family residences. Over in Lanai, you know, at the
time--I knew, I used to work there--I drove, it takes 15 minutes for fire trucks with red lights and
sirens to get down there in 15 minutes. You know, in four minutes your house flashes over and,
and it's through the roof, it's going. You're not going to ... unless you're sprinkled--and, of
course, I thank all of you here for helping that one along, so now they are sprinkling down there.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and I know that some of these things we could address in the
Code, but also there's some other things that they have actually that are stated within the project
district and within the community plan that may be appropriate. My final question is that
because you talked about the issue of the brush and the kiawe and all of the--or I guess
Member Kane did--that whole area is just loaded with fuel ... (laughter) . .. And because the
mauka component, that area that abuts the brush, would you feel that it would be advantageous
to put some type of a condition that there be a buffer zone that was just kept in, you know, open
space with, with all of the fuel removed so that there was a distance separating this particular
development from anything that mayor may not be built in the future on, you know, farther
mauka?
MR. BAL: Well, I've been in this Department for 34 years and as far as I can remember we have always
promoted that fact. And I was in the Prevention Bureau for 20 years and, and we tried to do that
on, on Molokai with the live grazing. We tried dealing with different areas and trying to do this,
but, you know, we always ... our... one of my former chiefs, Chief Herb Campos, he, he was an
avid golfer and, of course, he said that, you know, golf courses are always good, we never have
to worry about that, plenty of water and, you know, protect the homes, no brush fire is gonna run
through there. So, you know--
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and if were to provide some type of a buffer zone about
what is the general width of a buffer?
MR. BAL: It, it depends, it depends what that. .. how that would be addressed. It would depend on
how, how close it would be to, to structures actual. So, you know, if they did a, a golf course, I
don't know the layout. But-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right.
MR. BAL: --ifthey did a golf course, you know, out there-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. BAL: --nothing else, no structures and you had at least 100 feet away from any of these major
brush fires, you know, it's, it be relatively safe.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair.
. . . Chief, I forgot to ask you a question. The ... you know, things change over time and we're
512 years since this project was through the Planning Commission. And so your, your Fire Plans
Examiner, Scott English, his review of this project in August of 2000 said that, fire apparatus
access roads and water supply for fire protection shall comply with Article 10 of the Uniform
Fire Code, 1988. So that's a little out of date, and we just updated that Fire Code.
MR. BAL: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So ... would, would ...well, I would like to make a condition or at
least make sure that we've got. .. the right Article on the right Fire Code.
MR. BAL: Well, of course, that, that would not have anything to do with what they have going. We'd
basically... and we basically reserve the right to make further comments as this progresses and,
of course, with the proper codes. And I think you'll find that anytime a, a project comes
out--regardless of when the, the Code was written or when that was written--that we still have to
provide ... or we'd still have to ... design with the present Code, regardless of what that was.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
subdivision--

So that would happen when they come in for their first

MR. BAL: That's correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --and you would review it and say, okay, these are you standards.
MR. BAL: Yeah. They couldn't very well say, okay, well, wait, this is what he said in 2000.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: ... (laughter) . ..
MR. BAL: I. .. yeah...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I don't know, depends on the Mayor.
MR. BAL: We'd, we'd run them out oftown-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... (laughter). ..
MR. BAL: --on a fire truck.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I, I just had one last question, Mr., Mr. Chair.
comment earlier about houses being built without roads.

You made a

MR. BAL: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: How is that happening?
MR. BAL: I asked the same question when I was in there and the .. .I won't mention any names, but
down in Kihei there is this famous developer that had his own ideas of how things were done.
And we, we finally had to press him against the wall to get him to ... deal with it; and also
another one in Wailuku where they put the infrastructure in, they just didn't put water in it.
There's water in it, there's a garden hose connected to the 8-inch standpipes. And took 'em, you
know, a few months to fill up and get static pressure, and as soon you popped the cap off and
opened the--the, the same person here, Scott English, went up there and did a check. You know,
he opened it and went vroom, and that's all the water that was there. So playing the games with
the, with the guys is, is not good. It's just like dealing with Mother Nature, it's not nice
to ... mess with Mother Nature.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So that issue was resolved? I mean we're not having this as a
standard operating procedure in this County, that they're building houses without access roads or
was this a one-MR. BAL: Well, that would be ... depend on the waivers that they got from other departments to do this
thing. But we have, we have held that you are required to provide access unless they've, they've
pulled that old Code out from under me. You know, I'd like, I'd like a chance to re-read what the
new Code and see what it says.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, as far as I know, we haven't made any amendments to the
Code, so-MR. BAL: Well, then it should protect this County and, and the Fire Department.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. That, that's very disturbing. So whoever this famous
developer was, when you put him up against the wall, did he say, okay, I'll put in a road?
MR. BAL: ... Well, he got concessions from higher ups.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... Against the County Code?
MR. BAL: ... I am going to take the Fifth on this one.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: ... (laughter) . .. Thank you, Captain.
· .. Chief.
MR. BAL: My friends call me "Captain".
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Yeah, thank you... .(laughter} ...
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for the Fire Department?
· .. Seeing none, thank you for coming down this afternoon. We're now going to hear from
Housing. We have Ms. Lee here.
· .. Ms. Lee, would you like to make an opening statement?
MS. LEE: ... Thank you, Chair. Good afternoon, Committee. I really don't have anything new to add
to what was said earlier. In fact, I'm sure you'll probably enlighten me on what the latest
affordable housing... contribution will be.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Members, any questions for Ms. Lee?
... Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Ms. Lee, good ... good afternoon. I, I
guess just to follow up because I, I think we're kind of just working on the same page in terms of
the summary of the affordables that's been already provided to us. The, the addition that we
heard about during, during our last meeting was the consideration of Mr. Redings [sic) project,
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the homeless project on, on 6 acres that the developer would, would provide. Have you gotten
any additional feedback from either Mr. Redings [sic} or the developer?
MS. LEE: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So at this particular point that's really not part of the affordables that
you're aware of?
MS. LEE: No, but your Chair has informed me that there is ... a new proposal that will be made with
regard to the 5 or 6 acres off-site and that the 100 units that were going to be built off-site are
now, now going to be built on-site, but I have no official, you know, document. .. that was given
to me and I'm sort of waiting for what the developer is going to propose today.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Terrific, Ms. Lee. So like wanting to know who that developer was in
Kihei, I will be in awe waiting for Mr. Carroll's-MS. LEE: .. .(laughter). ..
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --additional information. Thank you .. . (laughter) . ..
MS. LEE: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any questions .. . (laughter) . .. for Ms. Lee?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... (laughter) . ..
CHAIR CARROLL: ... If not, we had this discussion at the last meeting, and you will see in your
binders that I sent a request. .. to the developer to consider restating his proposal to leave the
affordable housing component as is within the ... project and to make land available, 5 acres, for
Mr. Ridings to do a homeless shelter type operation and low-income housing. Could you please
come down, Mr. Jencks?
MR. JENCKS: ... Come on down.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: You might as well stay down.
MR. JENCKS: How can I help you, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Jencks, you had received a communication from the Chair?
MR. JENCKS: Yes. Yes, I did.
CHAIR CARROLL: Would you care to comment?
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MR. JENCKS: Certainly.
. . . We had proposed-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I'm sorry, Mr. Chair, excuse me. Be, before Mr. Jencks begins, can you-COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Reference.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: --reference the communication-CHAIR CARROLL: That is in...what's the date-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: --as far as the date, please?
CHAIR CARROLL: --Ms. Nakata?
MS. NAKATA: It's dated July 7th of2006.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: It's in Binder No. IV, Ms. Nakata?
MS. NAKATA: Yes, it should be in your most recent binder.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay, because I have a July 5th __
CHAIR CARROLL: I'll give the Members a-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: --and a July 10th . So .. .if it's placed in order, then I don't have that.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Neither do, neither do 1.
CHAIR CARROLL: Do the other Members have this communication?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I found it. It's not in order, but I found it. It's-COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: ... (inaudible) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: --mixed with the other ones.
CHAIR CARROLL: Alright.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: It's a one page, front and back.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yeah. Alright, do all the Members have this communication from the Chair to the
applicant?
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... We'll wait a moment while Mr. Mateo-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: .. .(laughter) . ..
CHAIR CARROLL: --finds his.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And Mr. Molina. Yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: Okay?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Sorry-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: --Mr. Jencks.
MR. JENCKS: No, it's quite all right.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Jencks, proceed.
MR. JENCKS: Yes, sir. We had made a proposal to provide acreage off-site on land owned by a
different partnership that we had purchased in South Maui for the development of special needs
housing. And in discussing the need with Mr. Ridings and Ms. Lee, it was clear that they needed
to build 100 units. And at the last meeting, Mr. Ridings described what that project would be
comprised of and what it would be. Subsequent to that meeting, as the Chair described, received
a letter from him asking about the idea of providing land for this, for this use over and above the
420 units that we are agreeing to build and build those units in the project. I have talked to the
partners on both Wailea 670, as well as the partners on the Maui Industrial property that we
acquired, and they have no real problems of providing the land, but as I stated to the Chair at our
meeting in his office and as I stated also previously here today, a decision on whether or not we
would provide 5 acres of land for that use can be made very quickly within the context of
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understanding what all the conditions are on the project. Because we have, we have a ways to
go, we just talked about a fire station, you know, dedicating land for a fire station, possibly a
police station. There's other things that are going to come up. What I will tell you, if understand
what the conditions are ... and we have agreement on the conditions on this project and that is an
outstanding issue, I can have an answer for you in five minutes from the receipt of those
conditions. So we are entertaining that, we're willing to entertain it if we understand what all the
conditions are. We have to understand it within context.
... I think that's fair.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: .. .(inaudible) . ..
CHAIR CARROLL: Questions for Mr. Jencks? Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: .. .{laughter} . .. Thank you, Chair. I think that's fair. So just to
be clear, the 5 acres you're talking about are the ones up by... Tesoro?
MR. JENCKS: That's what we had ... yeah, correct, a light industrial land up close to ... Tesoro.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and what you're agreeing to entertain ... or consider is that
the 420 affordable units will be on-site of your project, and then the 5 acres would be an
additional donation for Mr. Ridings' project?
MR. JENCKS: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you.
MR. JENCKS: And if! may. The idea was ... and we'd like to suggest that instead of giving this 5 acres
or whatever it is to the County, it would go to Maui Economic Concerns of the Community, so
it's, it's a direct dedication to them for the development of the project.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Would, would Ms. Lee have any problem with that?
MS. LEE: Not at all. Not, it'll be faster if it's done that way.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: ... (laughter) . .. Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Any further questions for the applicant concerning this
or any other concerns on housing? Since we have Ms. Lee over here, I'd like to keep
the ... dialogue focused on housing .
. . . Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Mr. Jencks, at, I think, the first meeting ...
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... that we had, you gave us a PowerPoint, and I think it broke down the ...what you were
proposing for the affordable housing.
MR. JENCKS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: And has that changed at all?
MR. JENCKS: No, I don't, I don't believe it has at all. Urn ...would you-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So-MR. JENCKS: --want me to summarize for you quickly?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No, no, I have it right here.
MR. JENCKS: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Urn .. .40 percent. .. single-family, 60 percent multi-family ...
. . . Well, this is confusing to me, 30 percent affordable on-site. Does that mean at that time you
were considering 70 percent ofthe affordable to be off-site?
MR. JENCKS: No. What I was saying there was that the 30 percent is the affordable requirement for
the proj ect.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, I see. Okay. Okay. So ... what I'm looking for is something a
little more definitive. Oh, here we go. No.
MR. JENCKS: Actually, I've provided to you a summary on the affordable housing... proposal. And
maybe, I don't know if .. maybe you don't, you haven't seen it. It should be in your file. It's
fairly straightforward, I can explain it to you fairly quickly. It's 30 percent of the project, which
is 420 units-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, wait, wait, wait. Yeah, I've got all that. What I'm, what I'm
looking for, Mr. Jencks, is something that shows us ... you're going to do 105 units at 140
percent; 105 units at 120 percent of the, of affordable; and then 100 percent or less of affordable
median price, 210 units. So what I'd like to see is in each one of those ranges and for those
number of units, how many of those units are going to be multi-family, how many might be
single-family, are you considering a mix of rental and for-sale units, and what the square footage
is. I mean I want to know what we're getting out of this, not just numbers, you know, a real
picture of what ...
MR. JENCKS: Uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: '" what is going to be built.
MR. JENCKS: Okay. Um .. .1 can provide, I can provide you that infonnation. I will tell you that
today the 140 percent product, the 120 to 140 would be single-family, the 120 to ... excuse me,
the 100 to 120 would be a combination of single-family and multi-family.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'm sorry, say that again?
MR. JENCKS: The 100 to 120 percent would be a combination of single-family and multi-family.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
MR. JENCKS: And the 100 percent product would, would be attached multi-family product.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... Attached multi-family?
MR. JENCKS: It could be ... the Project District Ordinance that we have provided to you gives us some
options on density and also product type or type of building--whether it's a duplex, triplex,
stacked flats, town homes-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I see.
MR. JENCKS: --and, and any kind of attached, typically even a duplex or a triplex is considered a
multi-family type ofproject.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right. So could you give us a breakdown of that? I mean 'cause
that. . .it's much more, to me . . .it's much more appealing to see 100 percent or below in a duplex
as opposed to a big apartment complex as multi-family. Because we're looking at putting
families in these units, and I think that families should be ground level so the kids can go in and
out. And... so if you could give us a better breakdown on... you know, I don't want to tie you
with anything specific, well, I actually do .. .(laughter) . .. I want to tie you .. .(laughter) . .. to
something kind of general. But...1 want to tie you to something more than just these
percentages so that we can see what we're getting--and, and specifically square footage.
Because... you know, it's all about, you know, what you're getting for your dollar. And .. .it's a
big, there's a big difference to me if, if... affordable unit at, say, 100 percent is 1,200 square feet
or 600 square feet. There's a big difference there.
MR. JENCKS: I can--what I've done .. .I don't want, my intention is not to build what you typically
have seen on Maui in this project. I've gone and I went and I spent the, the other day with ...
. . . HR Horton, DR Horton in, excuse me, in Honolulu, the major homebuilder, and also another
major builder that's ... Castle & Cooke--
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Horton Hears a Who.
MR. JENCKS: What, what was that? I'm sorry?
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: No, no, no .... (laughter). " It's late ... (laughter) . ..
MR. JENCKS: DR Horton, major homebuilder. And they have, they have a new product they're
building on Oahu in, in these price ranges, in the 100 percent, 120, and 140 that are products that
you've never seen on Maui before. And I'll give you an example. They're building 120 percent
product. It's a single-family detached product. .. some with garage, some without garage, in a
condominium context. You're not getting a specific ... (inaudible) . .. you're getting a singlefamily home with a private yard area, which is a great concept.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Like a Zero-lot line?
MR. JENCKS: No, it's not like Zero-lot line. Zero line is a completely different product. The things
that you've never seen here on Maui. So, I'm kind of reaching out, looking for a new product so
I can provide a variety and do exactly what you're, you're talking about. So, yeah, I can, I can
provide you some detail. That's not a problem.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That would be great. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Chairman. Mr. Jencks, could you also comment on the
same affordable housing summary sheet? On the back of it there is ... on one of your bullet
points, contribution of $1,000 per unit at close of escrow that'll go towards a new homeowner
program. Could you expand on that?
MR. JENCKS: Well, in, in our discussions with Ms. Lee, we talked about this new homeowner
program. And the idea of contributing to that is a positive way to get, to help more people get
into homes--$I,OOO a unit for every unit, whether it's market or affordable, goes, at close of
escrow, that's going to be, you know, that's a significant amount of money that goes into that
fund. That's I-point, $1.4 million.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Mateo. Any further questions for Mr. Jencks?
... Hearing none, thank you.
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MR. JENCKS: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for Ms. Lee, Housing and Human Services?
· .. Hearing none, thank you for coming down, Ms. Lee. And we are looking for Public Works
now, Mr. Miyamoto, Michael Miyamoto.
MS. NAKATA: Mike ... the Deputy Director is on his way.
CHAIR CARROLL: Alright. While he is on his way, since he is not here yet-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Break.
CHAIR CARROLL: --I'm going to ask the Planning Department to come forward. Is there any
questions for the--well, first of all, before I ask them to come forward, is there any questions for
the Planning Department ...
· .. while we're waiting for Public Works?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... {inaudible} . ..
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: ... {laughter} . ..
CHAIR CARROLL: If there's no questions for the Planning Department, I'm going to call a
five-minute recess while we wait for Public Works. We will be in recess for five minutes.
· . . {gavel} . ..
RECESS:

5:08 p.m.

RECONVENE:

5:16 p.m.

CHAIR CARROLL: .. .{gavel} . .. This Land Use meeting of July 19th is now back in session.
Members, thank you for that brief recess. We have Public Works with us now. And for the
Members information, it, we do not have enough Members--Mr. Hokama is excused because he
is in Honolulu, and because of other considerations, we will not be able to have a recessed
meeting. I would ask you if this questioning does go on a little past 5 :30, if you could hang in
there with a quorum so, hopefully, we can finish with this Department. Mr. Miyamoto, do you
have any opening statements?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Not at this time, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Alright, the floor is now open for Public Works. And this is the last Department to
go through. Of course, we have Planning which is always here with us and we also have the
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applicant, but this is the last Department that we should have to call forward, unless there is a
special request to call back another department for clarification of some issue. I'll give you a
moment to go through the binders .
. . . --(CHANGE OF TAPE, start 4A)-- ...Ms. Johnson?

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I'll just ask a quick question because one of, one of the areas, of
course, of concern is because Kihei is developing so ...rapidly and there's been such . .. you
know, an issue when we have storm events ...with the runoff going into the nearshore waters. In
Councilmember Anderson's Committee meeting this morning, we've just seen, you know, some
of the components of what's contributing to reef degradation. And I know we have the grading
ordinance, but in this area that they are planning on developing, I notice in... there will be
detention basins mauka. What. .. flood event are .. .is it to IOO-year storm standards or is it going
to detain all of that runoff? Or how will it really impact, and do you anticipate at any point in
time that any of this development would contribute to any of the degradation of the nearshore
waters?
MR. MIYAMOTO: ... Mr. Chair, if! may respond?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Miyamoto?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Yes, the current County Code says they need to mitigate any increase in drainage
runoff from the property, which it. .. given the ...the proposed development with the golf course
and water features it seems rather apparent that they should be easily able to accommodate that.
The current Planning Commission tact has been to ask developers to do a little bit more than,
than what the County Code has, has required them to do. And I'm, I'm sure this developer will,
you know, if so asked, would probably be willing to help contribute, you know, help to mitigate a
little bit more than what's required them, by them of the Code. I'm sure the golf course would
enjoy having some water features that could make the course a little bit tougher. Regarding
downstream, I think in Planning Commission they've had conversations about. . .I think one of
the projects that was very near the shoreline--I think it was in, actually within the Council that
they were talking about Wailea doing a, an additional study to help mitigate and reduce the
nitrogen into the, the offshore area and everything. So, I think there is some effort that's being
done. I'm sure the developer, you know, with all the new technology and the, the ... trying to
clear up the, the storm water runoff certainly be looking at ways to mitigate that, those concerns.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Because the project originally was comprised of two golf
courses, obviously there's more opportunity to put detention basins and water features. What, in
your opinion, does that do to some of the potential for providing for the mitigative measures that
would be needed to retain all of the runoff on-site?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Yeah.. .it's really .. .in just brief look at the site plan, it really shouldn't be that
much of a problem because, you know, what you can mitigate with ponds, you can certainly do
with, you know, underground storage facilities. Or if you want to put ponds up on the, the
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mauka side of that corridor, that, that State right-of-way corridor, they certainly can look at
putting basins in that area. They could be using some of these, these passive parks as possible,
additional storage areas, and things of that nature. So there, there's a lot of engineering solutions
that, you know, as they get further along in the process that can, that can certainly address these
concerns.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And with regard to the issue of the airborne dust. .. because I
know that area, it's just very windy, it's windy over in Lahaina as well and I see a lot of the
projects right now... there, there's just so much dust and dirt, you know, that's airborne and then,
of course, that ends up in people's, you know, homes and, you know, on the ocean surface. So
are you going to, irrespective of the grading ordinance, were there any other, I guess,
components of this particular project district where you would see we could add additional
conditions or were you going to recommend anything that we could add in to mitigate? Because
a lot of these soil curtains, particularly in these areas, anything that's done, it doesn't really work.
MR. MIYAMOTO: Uh-huh. The, the ordinance is ... you know, can be, can be .. .it becomes an
enforcement issue regarding dust and it depends on how big of an area we allow them to ... to
start, to work on at a particular time. Obviously, if this project can be phased, they, they'll open
up smaller areas of the, the grading area where the potential for dust could be. But
there's ...we... you know, the Kihei Treatment Plant has reclaimed water available for dust
control and, which could easily be utilized by the developer as they're, during their construction
to help with the dust control in this area.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and with regard to fill--because the issue has surfaced recently
about some of the, you know, mill mud that people are now complaining about. ..have you in..
.and I'm not, you know, totally well versed on your ordinance, but I know you have certain
protections in there. But do you believe if it was important to us to put a condition, would you
have any objection to our adding a condition that fill be, you know, not from specific sites?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Regarding the quality of the fill, the fill material, that's really not something that
Public Works really regulates, except for its structural integrity...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. MIYAMOTO: ... you know, compactionability and, you know, how load bearing of that fill. The
quality of it is obviously Department of Health that wi11100k at, you know, on the quality of that
fill. They... as in the recently publicized project that's out there, you know, there were reports
that were filed. And then, it just becomes a matter of enforcing whether they've actually utilized
fill that they said they were going to utilize. But regarding the, the building heights and
everything, I think the, the current publicity of other projects in the area that have brought it to
mind, that I'm very certain that. .. the Department of Planning will be certainly scrutinizing a lot
ofthe, any grading plans and building constructions for this project.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Members, for your information, on communication April 6, 2006 from the
applicant, on page 5 concerning water runoff and the aquatic resources or protection of: In an
effort to meet all requirements placed on the project by the State Land Use Commission, the
project team, the applicant, commissioned a water quality study for the nearshore area fronting
Wailea Resort as a way to establish baseline for future monitoring. This report will be updated
on a yearly basis and has been provided to the Committee Members in a previous
communication.
Just so the, if some of the Members aren't aware of that. I realize we have a lot of paper before
us.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I know and I, I recalled seeing something, you know, in that regard.
But with regard to those specific conditions, when we put in conditions and there's a monitoring,
I guess the question I would have, Mr. Chair, is ...were there any... because that is not really a
mitigative measure, it's a monitoring measure, what is. . .the purpose of putting in such a
condition.. .if it has no .. .(laughter) . .. I guess, other side to it? Like in other words, yes we're
monitoring it and the population of coral is declining rapidly--what .. .(laughter) . .. I guess
within those conditions ... yeah, it's great to know that the resource is declining rapidly, but what
are you going to do about it? .. .(laughter) . .. And so that, I guess, would be something for us to
consider about. .. what is the, what is the other side of that? If so much of a decline occurs or if
through the monitoring it's found that there is serious damage to the resource, then what is the
punishment or what is the recourse?
CHAIR CARROLL: It's a good point and I will say for the Members' benefit and the public--we've
gone over this before. For one thing, the monitoring can show a degradation of the inshore. It's
very difficult to prove sometimes that the applicant was the one that caused the ...this condition.
And then, again, the mitigating effort to correct the condition has always been a problem. So the,
that's where we're at on that right now and it's something, hopefully, we can address as we
proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Just. .. for everyone's information. The
condition, one of the conditions that this land currently carries in a unilateral agreement on the
deed of the land--and these were conditions that were imposed in, when they got their 1993
Project District zoning .
. . . Excuse me, yes, these are County conditions as well as ... um ...
. . . You know, this is interesting because it's kind of flip-flopped. In the past, we did the
zoning first, and then they went and got their Land Use Classification from the State. Now these
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days we're finding it the opposite. They're going to the State Land Use Commission and getting
their District Boundary Amendment, and then coming to us, which I think is very backwards, but
anyway whatever. One of the conditions that currently runs with the land is that the petitioner
shall submit their integrated golf course management plan to the Department of Health for
review and approval to address issues such as use of fertilizers, biocides, and herbicides. The
plan shall be approved prior to the issuance of a grading permit for the golf course. Copies of
the, of the approved plan shall be submitted to the Planning Department and the Department of
Public Works for their files. So this brings up something .. . (laughter). .. I don't think that we
should just repeal this ordinance that's already on the land, which is what they're asking us to do-is repeal it in its entirety and adopt a whole new ordinance. And I would hope that we wouldn't
be so quick to do that without looking at the conditions that are already imposed on this property
by people who sat in these seats before us. And that is one of those conditions, Mr. Chair. Urn .

. . . Strange enough, all the way through here they talk about the extension of Piilani Highway,
conditions attached to the extension ofPiilani Highway. So ... anyway, back to ... Mr. Miyamoto .
. . . If, do any ofthe other Members have questions for Public Works?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, I have.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: I'll yield to Mr. Pontanilla.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Pontanilla?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Miyamoto, this is Phase I. How closely do you review
the drainage plans in regards to this particular project?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Mr. Chair, if! may respond?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Miyamoto?
MR. MIYAMOTO: There, the, the typical process when they submit all of these reports, then it goes to
our Engineering Division that has the expertise in reviewing drainage type reports and traffic
studies and things like that. So the staff has reviewed both reports at, at this point with the level
of detail that was provided.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. In Phase II how closely do you .. .look at the, the plans
themselves in.. .in Phase II process they need to submit their, their drainage plans and how
closely do you review that drainage plan?
MR. MIYAMOTO: As more and more information becomes available, obviously the level of review
has to increase also along with that. As you have, as you have grades and slopes and, you know,
drainage courses and everything, yes we have to look at those, that, those plans a little bit and it
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takes a little bit longer. We have bigger plans to look at versus, previously, we just had reports to
look at with soil types and calculations in it.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Whenever a developer has Phase II approvals--of course, the next phase
is Phase III--how closely you guys monitor that plans in regards to the different areas that need
to be ... developed? In other words if this is a 20-year build-out, I'm sure it's going to have sub
Phases I, II, III, IV. How closely does the Department review the plans?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Miyamoto?
MR. MIYAMOTO: The, as the plans get into Phase III which is more the construction phase, the plans
get a lot more detail, they start sizing things--the sizes of, of the pipes that are going to go on the
roadways, the sizes of the concrete, you know, the rebar within the concrete. So this is at a point
where a lot of the building inspectors get involved and they review the plans and they look at it,
and they're also required to do some monitoring of the construction and things like that. And
then similar to another project currently in Central Maui that's rather large that's being built in
phases, every time a new phase comes in, you know, we always look at not just, you know, that
particular phase, but is it in sequence as they, they had originally endeavored. If it isn't, we ask
them to do additional work. For example, the one, the Maui Lani project there, the sequence is
slightly out so we're asking them to do additional work, additional traffic studies, additional
drainage work to, to confer that what's being proposed there will not impact the infrastructure
that's for that project.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The other question that I have ... based on the Public Works
Committee, you know, we're now reviewing the outdoor lighting proposal, amendment. For a
project like this--well, this is only Phase I. .. and until the ordinance is approved, does the
Department make some ... recommendation in regards to having this developer provide low
pressure sodium lights?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Typically on the ... on all, all these types of project we require them to comply with
the outdoor lighting, the current, whatever the current regulation is at when they, when they start
the development process. And so if we know the, the requirement is coming down with the
modifications, we also let them know. For example, I think this developer has seen that the
writing on the wall for like affordable housing is 30 percent, so he's proposing it. So if we know
something's coming down the road, we try to steer the, the developers towards that end, letting
them know, you know, you're going to have to do it ultimately, so you may as well do it now,
even though the ordinance has not been officially adopted at this point.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: So it would be fair to say that we could add a condition like that to
provide low pressure sodium lights?
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MR. MIYAMOTO: If that's the Members' wish that LPS, given the ...what's been in The Maui News
about the ...what. .. there's some opposition to it by the Police Department, if that's the body's
decision.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla.
· .. Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. You know, again, it's very strange how
things change with passage of time. I'm looking at the Department of Public Works Waste
Management review letter for this project dated August 7, 2007 [sic}. And guess who wrote the
letter? Mr. Charlie Jencks, Director of Public Works ... (laughter) . .. So ...
· .. And he says to ... review of this application, that recommended drainage improvements as
represented in this report shall be constructed consistent with development of the project. A
master drainage report and phasing plan shall be submitted for review and approval with Phase II
Project District processing.
· .. Now, I'm reading this from ... the October 2000 meeting ...
· .. in front of the Planning Commission, Change in Zoning and Project District Phase I
approval, which has corne to us. And .. .I wanted to ask him questions about the drainage plan,
but. . .it, it's supposed to be attached as Exhibit 9. And my exhibits only go up to 22 [sic}. So
somehow... urn .. .I don't have that right now and I'm wondering if Mr. Miyamoto has reviewed
anything that has to do with a drainage plan attached to this project, and ifhe ever reviewed this?
I know he's new, too. Have you ever really reviewed .. .(laughter) . .. this project?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Mr. Chair, it's very, it's very unusual for the Director or Deputy to review it. It's
staff that does the review, and our Engineering Division is the one that generally does all the
reviews. And at this point, I, I'll be honest, I'm not sure if the, the staffhas actually--maybe the
applicant's engineer could, could answer that question.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, the question was did review this .. .{laughter} . .. and ... so
you haven't. I don't think they can answer that question.
MR. MIYAMOTO: For me personally, I can't say I reviewed it. Whether staff reviewed it, I haven't
seen correspondence because, obviously, I haven't been here in this capacity that long. And
that's why I suggested maybe the applicant might have a better idea, since they've been working
on this, whether or not they've had received comments regarding that.
CHAIR CARROLL: We can get that information for you. My Staff, we will get that information for
you and for the rest of the Members.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, any more question for Mr. Miyamoto?
... Hearing none, Mr. Miyamoto, thank you very much. Members, it is ... 5:37. We're going to
adjourn this meeting in few moments, but first of all, I would like to give you an idea of what's
going to happen the next time we meet--and I do not have a date for that. We have other things
besides the drainage plan that we are going to have to have some correspondence on, to get
information back on and we will review the minutes to make sure we don't miss anybody's
request that they have made during this meeting. If anybody has anything afterwards that they
think about that they would like an answer on, please notify me, either me or my Staff, and we
will make sure to get that for you before the next meeting. At the next meeting, I intend to work
on conditions, conditions of zoning because it has been brought out and I think made very clear
by the applicant, and I agree, that we have different Members asking for many different things.
Until we actually start putting up on the wall over there the conditions that we wish to have, it's
going to be very difficult to get a "yes" or a "no" and find out where we're at. So at the next
meeting, I intend to work on conditions of zoning and the things that we have brought up that we
would like on this application. And that is probably going to be a very long meeting. Ms.
Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair, before you adjourn, I would ask permission to ask a
question of the archaeological consultant for this project. I know he's been here all day-CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, certainly.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --or not all day, but all-CHAIR CARROLL: Is there any objection to bringing down the archaeological consultant?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: Hearing none ... could you please come to the podium?
... Please identify yourself, name and position, at the microphone.
MR. SINOTO: ... Aloha, Chair, Committee Members. My name is Aki Sinoto. I'm the Principal and
owner of Aki Sinoto Consulting, and I'm the consulting archaeologist for this project.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Thank you for being here, Mr. Sinoto. I know
you come from Honolulu. And, you know, please excuse me if I ask you a question that may
seem obvious because we've got five years worth of documents here ... (laughter) . .. and so it's
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really hard to ... be able to keep track of any updates and, and...what's happened. So that's why
I'm asking you this question. Back in 2001, in a review for the Planning Department's report to
the Planning Commission, the ... State Historic Provision, Division, excuse me, stated that
they're, they had questions about the field methods that were used and that. .. at that time the
inventory survey had not yet been concluded or they had not accepted it. ..
MR. SINOTO: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... and that they also attached questions regarding various areas
within the project that didn't seem to have been adequately surveyed... and that some of the
features weren't recorded that were found in, in those areas that had been surveyed. So if you
could just briefly give us an update as to where you are with State Historic, if they have accepted
the inventory survey, if they have accepted determination of significance, and if you have a
mitigation or preservation plan that's currently been accepted by State Historic?
MR. SINOTO: Certainly. Basically, the field work for this particular project area started in 1993, but
the bulk of the survey work was done in August of 2000. And it pretty much encompassed just
the southern portion that's in a' a. Because previous archaeological surveys have been done for
the previous owner, and all of the permits and so forth that were granted were based on previous
surveys done prior to that time. And the State and, also we felt as consulting archaeologists that
some of those surveys were inadequate, especially in view of the fact that all of those surveys
essentially skipped the southern fourth of the project area. So our, our recent surveys have
concentrated in that area. And the review letter that you spoke of earlier in August of 200 1 ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, August 28 th •
MR. SINOTO: Yeah, that, that actually addressed our previous report. And we, we did a,
another revision based on that letter in October. And that report was accepted. But subsequent
to that. .. with conversations with Melissa, the State Archaeologist for Maui, we went ahead and
did a survey of the northern portion as well. Because her logic was if you, if you .. .if you're not
comfortable with ... (laughter) . .. the previous, you know, research on the southern part, she said
I'm not comfortable with the northern part. So we went ahead and completed that. We satisfied
that through a combination of field testing and also some detailed aerial photo investigations.
We went over that with Melissa and essentially she's, she's concurred with that. So ... currently,
I know that Wailea Development is putting in a water tank in the northern portion of this
property just above the highway easement, and that's already been approved by SHPD. So as far
as the further archaeological procedures that are still remaining for this project, it concerns only
the southern acreage. So it's the southern 190 acres that are in a'a that our inventory survey
covered. And based, based on that, we are developing a data recovery plan, as well as a
preservation plan, for all of the sites in that area. But that hasn't been finished yet. So we
haven't gotten approval from the State on the preservation plans yet.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Have you gotten approval on significant determination?
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MR. SINOTO: Yeah, we have. And based on that, we're going to be in the next ... four to five months,
we'll be completing both of those plans--the actual mitigative data recovery work and the, we'll
be presenting, submitting a preservation plan, the long-term preservation plan for approval.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, and when did this all happen, Mr. Sinoto, after this left the
Planning Commission, obviously? So, I mean have you submitted or has, have you submitted or
has the developer submitted to the Council's Committee any of this new information or approval,
approvals from State Historic?
MR. SINOTO: The approval letter should, should be in your packet, I believe, of, of the subsequent
approval of the revised report.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: For the 190 acres?
MR. SINOTO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so the remaining acreage, are you saying that's already
received State Historic review and approval?
MR. SINOTO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And is there a mitigation, preservation plan for that portion of the
property?
MR. SINOTO: No, because there are no sites ... portion of the property. Oh, there, the sites in the
whole Wailea 670 acreage is within the southern 190 acres.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: '" Seems like that should've been done first, then so we would
see what you intend to preserve and how you intend to preserve it, and how it's going to be
integrated into the development. I mean, I'm not real good in...visualizing .. .I mean I know
what "southern" means, but what part of that, what part of that area .. .is being developed? I
mean in other words, you must know because you've done the survey--where... how is the
project going to be impacting that area? Is it going to be a golf course? Is it going to be
housing? Exactly--have you submitted a map that shows where the sites are-MR. SINOTO: Yeah-COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: --within the contexts of the actual build-out ofthe project?
MR. SINOTO: I believe, you know, in the past meetings and also during the, the field visit that the
Committee made, I believe Mr. Jencks had a large colored map that showed the golf courses,
some of the housing increments, as well as some of the preservation precincts, which includes
the trail system that he spoke about earlier.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. So, I'm just trying to get an idea. You, you have submitted
to this Committee any review letters from State Historic Preservation since 2001?
MR. SINOTO: Um .. .I believe they're in the packet.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: In what packet?
MR. SINOTO: In, in your. . .in your folders.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... They, they have been submitted to this Committee?
MR. SINOTO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. And, and so also for the other portion, the 400 other acres
that. .. you say have already received review and approval, and that was done prior to 2001? Was
that for the golf course or-MR. SINOTO: No, that was done, that was done about the same time the revision was being done. So
there, there was an addendum report that was submitted about the same time as the revision. So
that was included in the acceptance letter or the approval letter from SHPD.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Well, I'll try to find those in all of this documentation.
Thank you very much. And you, and you say that you're working on a mitigation, preservation
plan that should be done in how many months?
MR. SINOTO: Actually, the implementation of the work that'll be discussed in the plan should be done
within four to five months.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --(CHANGE OF TAPE, start 4A)-- you mean implementing the
plan?
MR. SINOTO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But before you implement the plan you have to have it approved
by State Historic.
MR. SINOTO: Right. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So when are you going to do that?
MR. SINOTO: Well, we, we plan to get that in fairly soon so they can give us the approval, and then
we'll proceed with the field work.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so "fairly soon" is like? Because to, I'll be very frank, I'd
like to see that before we approve this project.
MR. SINOTO: The plan?
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Yes. Whether it's been approved by State Historic or not, I want to
see the plan...what you plan to do.
MR. SINOTO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Is that possible?
MR. SINOTO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Great. Thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: And, excuse me, along with that plan can you supply the map also?
MR. SINOTO: Yes.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes. Thank you. Any other, any questions?
... Hearing none, thank you very much. Members, thank you for staying later than I had
promised. The meeting, again, for anybody out there that is listening, we had planned a recessed
meeting at 7:00. It is canceled because we do not have a quorum. Thank you again for attending
and all those in our TV audience and in the Chamber for being with us today. Having no other
business, this Land Use Committee meeting of July 19t\ 2006 is adjourned ... .(gavel) . ..
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS (excused: RH, DK, CT).
ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.

ADJOURN: 5:49 p.m.

APPROVED:

ROBERT CARROLL, Chair
Land Use Committee
iu:min:060719:tf

Prepared by: Tammy M. Frias and Camille Sakamoto
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